
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

               
 
 

 

                                                                                                                          CIN No. U74999MH2006PLC163924 
 
To,  
The Department of Corporate Services, 
BSE Limited, 
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai – 400 001, Maharashtra 
 
 

ISIN Numbers: - INE035M07036 
Script Codes 973097 

 
 

Subject: - Notice of the 17th (Seventeenth) Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 50 (2), Regulation 53 and all other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘Listing Regulations’), please 

find attached herewith Notice of the 17th (Seventeenth) Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 

September 29, 2023 at 11.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company. 

 

The said Notice forms part of the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2022-23, which is annexed 

herewith and the same is also available on the website of the Company at https://www.jsw.in/groups/jsw-projects-

limited. 

 
You are requested to take the above information on record. 

 
Thanking you,  
 
Yours faithfully 
For JSW Projects Limited  

 
 

 
(Bhushan Prasad) 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: 06.09.2023 
Place: Mumbai 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

               
 
 

 

 

Copy to: -  
 
(a) Catalyst Trusteeship Limited (Trustee) 
(Erstwhile GDA Trusteeship Limited) 
Windsor, 6th floor,Office No.604, 
C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), 
Mumbai 400098 

 

Enclosed: Aforesaid. 
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JSW PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: U74999MH2006PLC163924 

Regd. Off.: JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051, Maharashtra, India 
 

NOTICE 
 
Notice is hereby given that 17th (Seventeenth) Annual General Meeting of the Members of JSW Projects Limited 
will be held on Friday, September 29, 2023 at 11.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at JSW Centre, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051, Maharashtra, India, to transact the following business: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
Item No. 1 – To Consider and Adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 
 
In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement (Standalone and Consolidated) of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated 
to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 
Item No. 2 – Appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu  (DIN 08010964), who 
retires from the office of directorship by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu  (DIN 08010964), who retires by rotation at this Meeting, be 
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.” 
 
 

By Order of the Board of directors 
For JSW Projects Limited 

 
Sd/- 

 
(Nagendra Kumar Paladugu) 

Managing Director 
DIN: 08010964 

 
 

Date: September 06, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 
 
Registered Office: 
JSW Centre, Bandra kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
Mumbai 400051, Maharashtra, India 
CIN: U74999MH2006PLC163924   
Tel. No.: +91 022 42861000 
Web:https://www.jsw.in/groups/jsw-projects-limited 



Note: 
1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“the Meeting”) is entitled to appoint one 

or more proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be a member of 
the Company. A person can act as proxy on behalf of member’s upto and not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in 
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. Further, a Member holding 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as 
proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder. Proxies in order to be 
effective, should be duly completed, stamped and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
not less than forty-eight hours before the time for commencement of the Meeting. 
 

2. Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting and bring their Attendance Slip 
along with their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting. 
 

3. In case of Joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote. 
 

4. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their DP ID and Client ID number(s) 
and those who hold share(s) in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number(s) in the attendance slip 
for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the Meeting. 
 

5. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 
 

6. Register of Director(s) /Key Managerial Personnel(s) and their shareholding, Register of Contracts in which 
Directors are interested and other Statutory Records as required under the laws will be available for inspection 
by the Members at the Meeting. 
 

7. Every member entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company can inspect the proxies lodged at 
the Company at any time during the business hours of the Company during the period beginning twenty-four 
(24) hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Annual General Meeting and ending on the 
conclusion of the meeting. However, a prior notice of not less than three (3) days in writing of the intension to 
inspect the proxies lodged shall be required to be provided to the Company. 
 

Details of Directors retiring by rotation 

Particulars Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu 
Age 57 Yrs. 
Date of first appointment 22/12/2017 
Nationality Indian 
Qualifications Degree in B.E. (Mechanical) from Andhra University 

Expertise in  Specific functional areas More than 28 years of industrial experience in Project 
execution and Plant maintenance 

Name of the Committee of the Company in which 
holds membership/Chairmanship 

Member of the CSR Committee of the Board 

Name of other companies in which holds directorship 
or name of Committee of the other companies in which 
holds Membership/Chairmanship 

Not applicable 

Number of shares hold in the Company Nil 
Relationship with other directors Not applicable 
No. of Board Meeting attended during the financial 
year 2022-23 

6 out of 8 

Remuneration Nil 



                                     
 

 
Route Map to JSW Centre 

 
 

 
 



JSW PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: U74999MH2006PLC163924 

Regd. Off.: JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051, Maharashtra, India 
 

Attendance Slip 
                                                                                               
Please fill and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting hall.  
 
I hereby record my presence at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company, held on Friday, September 29, 
2023, at 11.00 a.m., at JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051, India  
 

Registered Folio No./ 
*DP ID/Client ID 

 

Name and address of the Member(s) 
 
Joint Holder 1 
Joint Holder 2 

 

No. of Shares 

 

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form 
 
 
 

                               --------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Signature of Member or Proxy or Representative 

 
 
 
 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
 



 
JSW PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: U74999MH2006PLC163924 
Regd. Off.: JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051, Maharashtra, India 

 
Proxy Form 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

17th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Name of the Member: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Registered Address: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
Email id: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DP ID / Client ID / Folio No.: ____________________________________No. of Share:____________________  
 
 
I/We, being the member(s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

1. Name ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:___________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________Email id_____________________________ Signature __________________ failing 
him;   

2. Name ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:___________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________Email id_____________________________ Signature __________________ failing 
him;   

3. Name ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:___________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________Email id_____________________________ Signature __________________ failing 
him;   

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 17th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 29, 2023, at 11.00 a.m., at JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051, Maharashtra, India, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
Item 
No. 
 

Description  No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

I/We assent 
to the 
resolution 
(For) 

I/We dissent to 
the resolution 
(Against) 

1 To Consider and Adopt the Audited Financial Statements 
(Standalone and Consolidated) of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

   

2 Appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Nagendra Kumar 
Paladugu  (DIN 08010964), who retires from the office of 
directorship by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 
re-appointment. 

   

 
 
 

Affix revenue 
stamp 



 
 
 
 
Signed this…………… day of……………… 2023 
 
  
 
 
Signature of Shareholder: ______________________ Signature of Proxy holder(s): _____________________  
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. The Proxy need not be a 
Member of the Company. 



 DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Members of 
JSW PROJECTS LIMITED 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 17th (Seventeenth) Annual Report together with Audited 
Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
1. Financial Performance (Standalone and Consolidated) 
The performance of the Company as reflected by its Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 is 
summarized below: 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

F.Y. 2022-23 F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2022-23 F.Y. 2021-22 

Total Income           53,451.26           57,970.09        4,22,396.98      4,39,700.77  

Total expenses           38,509.04           38,090.44        3,90,525.52      3,52,126.90  

Profit before exceptional items and tax          14,942.22           19,879.65           31,871.46          87,573.87  

Exceptional items 
  

-  
                          -  

  
-  

  
-  

Profit before tax          14,942.22           19,879.65           31,871.46          87,573.87  

Tax expense:         

(a) Current tax             9,889.79             8,140.11             9,889.79            8,140.11  

(b) Deferred tax         (8,417.87)         (6,209.52)          (3,661.85)         10,962.19  

Total tax expense            1,471.92             1,930.59             6,227.94          19,102.30  

Profit for the year          13,470.30           17,949.06           25,643.52          68,471.57  

Other Comprehensive Income         

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss Equity instruments through 
other compressive income 

              (11.12)                  28.40                 (11.12)                28.40  

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not 
be reclassified to profit or loss 

                   1.30                (18.40)                    1.30               (18.40) 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit 
or loss Re- Measurement of the defined 
benefit plans 

                 20.74                   (0.92)                112.79                102.87  

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 
reclassified to profit or loss 

                (5.22)                    0.32                 (28.39)              (25.80) 

Total other comprehensive income for the 
year (A+B) 

                   5.70                     9.40                   74.58                  87.07  

Total Comprehensive Income for the year         13,476.00         17,958.46         25,718.10        68,558.64  

Total Profit for the year attributable to:         

Owners of the company  -   -           20,573.31          47,486.66  

Non-Controlling interests  -   -             5,070.21          20,984.91  

Other comprehensive income for the year 
attributable to: 

        

Owners of the company  -   -                   45.97                  54.82  

Non-Controlling interests  -   -                   28.61                  32.26  

Total comprehensive income for the year 
attributable to: 

      
 

Owners of the company  -   -           20,619.28          47,541.48  

Non-Controlling interests  -   -             5,098.82          21,017.16  

 
 
 



 
2. Highlights of Operations and State of Affairs 
 
a) Standalone Results  

During the year under review, your Company earned a total income for the financial year 2022-23 is of Rs.          
53,451.26 Lakhs as compared with Rs. 57,970.09 Lakhs in the previous financial year, indicating a decrease of 
7.80%. The Company total expenses for the financial year 2022-23 is Rs. 38,509.04 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 
38,090.44 Lakhs in the previous financial year, indicating an increase of 1.09%. Your Company’s profit after 
tax for the current year was Rs. 13,470.30 Lakhs as compared to profit of Rs. 17,949.06 Lakhs in the previous 
financial year. 

 
b) Consolidated Results  

The consolidated total income and expenses for the year under review was Rs.4,22,396.98 Lakhs and Rs.      
3,90,525.52 Lakhs respectively as compared to Rs. 4,39,700.77 Lakhs and Rs. 3,52,126.90 Lakhs respectively 
in the previous financial year. 

 
The Company had entered into a BOOT (Build Own Operate Transfer) Agreement (as amended from time to 
time) for development of an integrated CDQ (Coke Dry Quenching) Plant, DRI (Direct Reducing Iron) Plant 
and CPP (Captive Power Plant) with JSW Steel Limited (Agreement). As per the terms of the BOOT 
Agreement, the Fixed Assets pertaining to CDQ, DRI and Captive Power Plant are transferred to JSW Steel Ltd 
on April 01, 2023.  

  
Further, the Company is exploring business opportunities to expand its business in the prevalent business 
environment. 

 
3. Revision of Financial Statement 
There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review. 
 
4. Dividend 
The Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any dividend for the year under review as the 
profits to be utilized for the growth of the Company. 

5. Reserves 
The Companies Act, 2013, requires companies that issue of debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve 
from annual profits until such debentures are redeemed. Such companies are required to maintain 25% as a reserve 
of outstanding redeemable debentures. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be 
utilised except to redeem debentures. The Company has transferred Rs. 2300.00 Lakhs i.e. 10% of Outstanding 
Debentures of Rs. 23000.00 Lakhs from retained earnings to Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR). The Board of 
Directors has decided to retain the balance amount of profit in the retain earning amount. Accordingly, the 
Company has not transferred any amount other than DRR to the ‘Reserves’ for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
6. Disclosures under section 134(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect the 
Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of this 
report. 
 
7. Project and Expansion Plans 
During the year under review, the CDQ plant and CPP plant were running almost at planned capacity, whereas, 
DRI plant was running at 68% capacity. 
 
 
 



 
 
8. Holding, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate companies of the Company and their performance 
The equity shares of the Company are held by Mr. Sajjan Jindal and Mrs. Sangita Jindal, as Trustee of Sajjan 
Jindal Family Trust, along with their nominees. There are no holding or associate companies or Joint Ventures of 
the Company. Further, the Company have four subsidiaries, direct and indirect, as on 31st March 2023, Which 
includes one domestic subsidiary acquired during the financial year 2022-23. During the year under review, the 
Company has acquired 100% stakes in JSW Multiventures Private Limited. JSW New Age Private Limited and 
BMM Ispat Limited are subsidiaries companies of the Company. The Company having a step down subsidiary 
Lexapar Analytics Private Limited, which is the subsidiary of JSW New Age Private Limited in which the said 
subsidiary holds 90% equity shares.  
 
After the close of the financial year under review, the Company incorporated a new wholly owned subsidiary 
company, JSW Green Mobility Limited, date of incorporation 06th April, 2023, and made 100% disinvestment on 
26th May, 2023. 
    
Performance Highlight of Subsidiaries: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the salient features of the Financial Statements of each of the subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associate companies are set out in the prescribed Form AOC-1 as Annexure 1 and the same forms part and 
parcel of this Report. 
 
9. Share Capital 
 
During the period under review, there was re-classification of the Authorised Share Capital of the Company. 
During the period under review, existing Authorized Share Capital of the Company was Rs.550,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Five Hundred Fifty Crores only) divided into 55,00,00,000 (Fifty Five Crore) equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
(Rupees Ten), was re-classified vide approval of the members of the Company in their Extraordinary General 
Meeting, dated March 06, 2023, resulting the Authorised Share Capital is re-classified as Rs. 550,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Five Hundred Fifty Crores only) divided into 25,00,00,000 (Twenty Five Crores Only) Equity shares of 
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 30,00,00,000 (Thirty Crore Only) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 
 
The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company stand at Rs. 1,00,00,000 divided into 
10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.  
 
a) Disclosure under Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions of 
Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is 
furnished. 

 
b) Disclosure under Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information as 
per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
 

c) Disclosure under Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 
The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year under 
review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.  
 
 
 



 
 

d) Disclosure under Section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares 
purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 
10.  Debentures 
 
As on March 31, 2023, the following Non- Convertible Debentures (NCDs) are listed on the Wholesale Debt 
Market (WDM) Segment of BSE Limited: 
 

Particulars 2300 (Two Thousand Three Hundred) Rated, Listed, Zero Coupon, Redeemable, 
Non-Convertible Debenture (FV Rs. 10 Lakh each) 

Series Series C 
ISIN INE035M07036 
Debentures (Nos.) 2300 
Paid-up Value 230,00,00,000 
Redemption Date 25.03.2024 
Debenture Trustee Catalyst Trusteeship Limited 

 
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited is the Debenture Trustee of the aforesaid listed NCDs. 
 
During the year under review, the Company has redeemed (i.e. early redemption) of the following listed Non- 
Convertible Debentures (NCDs): - 
 

Particulars Series B - 350 Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures 
Series Series B 
ISIN  INE035M07028 
Debentures (Numbers) 350 
Paid-up Value 35,00,00,000 
Early Redemption Date  March 17, 2023 

 
During the period under review, the Company issued and allotted 1900 unlisted Optionally Convertible Debentures 
having Face Value of Rs. 10,00,000/- each, aggregating Rs. 190 Crores.  
 
11. Credit Rating 
During the year under review, Company has received Rating BWR AA- (CE)/Negative Assigned on March 31, 
2023, from Brickwork Rating India Private Limited. 
 
12. Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

a) Composition & Constitution of Board of Directors: - 
As on March 31, 2023 the Board of your Company comprises of following 4 Directors and out of which two 
are Independent Directors. 

 Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu, Managing Director 

 Mr. Vineet Agrawal, Director 

 Mr. Badri Narain Singh, Independent Director 

 Dr. Rakhi Jain, Independent Director 
 
During the period under review, Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain resigned from the office of directorship 
(Independent) of the Company with effect from September 01, 2022 and Mr. Badri Narain Singh was 



appointed as an Additional Director (Independent) with effect from September 01, 2022 and regularized in 
the Annual General Meeting, dated September 29, 2022. 
 
None of the directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Further, according to the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu, Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment.  

 
b) Board Meeting and Attendance: 
During the year under review, the Board of your company met 8 (Eight) times on 30.05.2022, 10.08.2022, 
01.09.2022, 09.11.2022, 06.01.2023, 07.02.2023, 28.02.2023 and 09.03.2023. Further circular resolutions 
were passed on 14.10.2022 and 30.03.2023. The details of Meeting attended by each director is as below: - 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director No. of Meeting held 
during tenure and 
entitled to attend 

No. of Meeting 
attended 

1 Mr. Vineet Agrawal 8 8 
2 Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 3 0 
3 Dr. Rakhi Jain 8 6 
4 Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu 8 6 
5 Mr. Badri Narain Singh 5 5 

 
c) Independent Directors & their Meeting 
During the year under review, Mr. Badri Narain Singh was appointed as an Independent director with effect 
from September 01, 2022 in place of departed Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain who was resigned from the office of 
directorship (Independent) with effect from September 01, 2022. The Independent Directors Meeting was 
held on 07.02.2023 as per Section 149, Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made thereunder, 
read with the Listing Regulations, without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of 
Management. 
 
Further Based on the declarations / disclosures received from Mr. Badri Narain Singh and Dr Rakhi Jain, 
Independent Directors on the Board of the Company and on the basis of evaluation of the relationships 
disclosed, the said directors are independent in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
d) Key Managerial Personnel 
During the year under review as on 31.03.2023, there were following person who were acting as a Key 
Managerial personal as on March 31, 2023: -  
1. Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu, Managing Director of the Company.  
2. Mr. Bhushan Prasad, Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 
3. Ms. Shilpa N. Satra, Company Secretary & Compliance officer. 

 
Ms. Shilpa N. Satra resigned from the office of the Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the Company 
with effect from June 01, 2023. 

 
13. General Meetings: - 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting:   
During the year under review, there were two Extra ordinary general meeting(s) held on 06th March, 2023 and 
13th March, 2023 by the Company. 

 
 
 
 



 
 
14.  Annual Evaluation of the Board  
The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key areas:  

i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings  
ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations  

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance  
iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management  
v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board 
has carried out the Annual Performance Evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as 
the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation 
process. 

 
15. Committees of Board 
During the year under review, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read alongwith the 
rules framed thereunder, the Board has the following Statutory Committees: - 

a) Audit Committee 
b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
c) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 

The details of all the Committee along with their charters, composition and meetings held during the year are 
provided as below: - 

 
a) Audit Committee: - 

Composition and Meeting 
During the period under review, Mr. Bandri Narain appointed as the member of the Audited Committee in place 
of departed member, Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain. 
 
As on March 31st, 2023, the Audit Committee comprises Mr. Vineet Agrawal as the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee, Dr. Rakhi Jain and Mr. Badri Narain as the members of the Audit Committee. During the period 
under review, the Audit Committee met six times i.e. on May 30, 2022; August 10, 2022, September 01, 2022; 
November 11, 2022, January 06, 2023 and February 02, 2023, which were attended by members as detailed 
below: 
 

No. Name of Member Designation Meeting held 
during tenure and 
entitled to attend 

Meeting 
Attended 

1 Mr. Vineet Agrawal Chairman 6 6 
2 Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Member 3 0 
3 Dr. Rakhi Jain Member 6 5 
4 Mr. Badri Narain Singh Member 3 3 

 
The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as enumerated in the terms of reference approved by 
the Board and as stated in the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee apart from other things inter-alia 
responsible for the internal control system and vigil mechanism system of the Company and the policy framed 
thereunder.  
 
 Internal Control System 
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. The Company have appointed Internal Auditor pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read alongwith the rules framed thereunder and reports to the Audit Committee of the 



Company. The Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee are responsible for monitoring and evaluating the 
efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, 
accounting procedures and policies and its subsidiaries. Based on the evaluation and the reports submitted by 
the Internal Auditor, corrective actions in the respective areas are taken thereby strengthening the controls. 
Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the 
Board. 
 
Risk and areas of Concern 
The Company has laid down a well-defined risk management mechanism to mitigate the risks and has also 
adopted a policy in this regard in line with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013. The said policy inter-
alia covers identification and access to the key risks areas and monitors the areas in order to take corrective 
measure at appropriate time. The overall objective of the policy is to improve awareness of the Company’s risk 
exposure and appropriately manage it.  
 
Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has adopted a Policy for 
establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees of the Company to report genuine concerns 
regarding unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s policy. The said 
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons who use such mechanism and 
makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional 
cases. We affirm that no employee(s) of the Company was denied access to the Audit Committee of the 
Company. The same is available on the website of the Company and link for the same is 
www.jsw.in/groups/jsw-projects-limited. 

 
b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

Composition and Meeting 
During the period under review, Mr. Bandri Narain appointed as a member of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board of directors of the Company in place of departed member, Mr. Ashok 
Kumar Jain. 
 
As on March 31st, 2023, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Vineet Agrawal as the 
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Dr. Rakhi Jain and Mr. Badri Narain as the 
members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. During the period under review, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee met 2 times i.e. on May 30, 2022 and September 01, 2022 which were attended 
by members as detailed below: 
 

No. Name of Member Designation Meeting held 
during tenure and 
entitled to attend 

Meeting 
Attended 

1 Mr. Vineet Agrawal Chairman 2 2 
2 Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Member 2 0 
3 Dr. Rakhi Jain Member 2 2 
4 Mr. Badri Narain Singh Member 0 0 

 
The roles and responsibilities of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as enumerated in the terms of 
reference approved by the Board and as stated in the Companies Act, 2013. As required under the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Committee has formulated two policies i.e. (i) Nomination Policy and (ii) Remuneration Policy. 
The same is available on the website of the Company and link for the same is www.jsw.in/groups/jsw-projects-
limited. 
 
 
 



 
 
Nomination Policy:  
The primary objective of the Nomination Policy is to provide a frame work and set standards that is consistent 
with the provisions of Section(s) 149, 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the 
appointment of persons to serve as Director on the Board of the Company and for the appointment of the KMP/ 
Senior Management of the Company, who have the capacity and ability to lead the Company towards achieving 
sustainable development. All candidates shall be accessed on the basis of the merit, related skill and 
competencies. There should be no discrimination on the basis of religion, caste, creed or sex. 

 
Remuneration Policy:  
In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, the Nomination and 
Remuneration committee shall recommend to the Board a policy relating to the Remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other Employees. Remuneration is linked to Company’s performance, individual 
performance and such other factors considered relevant from time to time. The Executive Directors (EDs)  are 
paid compensation as per the agreement entered into between them and the Company subject to approval of the 
Board and of the members of the Company in General Meeting and such other approvals as the case may be. 
The Non-Executive Directors are remunerated by way of sitting fees and commission as may be applicable 
case to case basis for the time being. 
 

c) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
During the year under review, there was no change in the composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee of the Board of directors of the Company. As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprises of 
following members and met only once i.e. on May 30, 2022 and were attended by members as detailed below: 
 

No. Name of Member Designation Meeting held 
during tenure and 
entitled to attend 

Meeting 
Attended 

1 Mr. Vineet Agrawal Chairman 1 1 
2 Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu Member 1 1 
3 Dr. Rakhi Jain Member 1 1 

 
The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company and link for the same is www.jsw.in/groups/jsw-
projects-limited.  
 
The report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities, details of the development of the CSR Policy and 
initiatives taken by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility is annexed as Annexure 2 to this Board 
Report.  
 
The Company has also constituted the Finance Committee of the Board of directors, having admistrative and 
other powers for day to day business affairs of the Company, comprising Mr. Vineet Agrawal and Mr. Nagendra 
Kumar Paladugu, directors, as its members. Both members of the Finance Committee met on October 20, 2022 
and March 24, 2023 respectively. 
 

16. Auditors 
a) Statutory Auditors 
The Members of the Company at their 16th Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2022, had re-
appointed M/s. HPVS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the 
office from the conclusion of 16th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 21st Annual General Meeting 
of the Company. 

 



The report of the Auditors along with notes forms part of this Annual Report. The observations made by the 
Auditors in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not call for any further comments. 
 
b) Secretarial Auditors 
The provisions of Section 204 read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, mandate the Company to 
obtain a Secretarial Audit Report from a Practicing Company Secretary. Mr. Prashant S. Mehta, Practicing 
Company Secretary, have issued the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial 
Audit Report issued by Mr. Prashant S. Mehta, Practicing Company Secretary, in Form MR-3 for the financial 
year 2022-23 is attached as Annexure 3 to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer. 

 
c) Cost Auditors 
In terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Mr. B. V. Sreenivasa, Cost Accountant, was appointed 
as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. In accordance with the provisions of 
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
the Company has maintained cost accounts and records.  
 
As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Director have approved the appointment of Mr. B. V. 
Sreenivasa, Cost Accountant,  as the Cost Auditor for the financial year 2023-24. 

 
17. Particulars of Contract and Arrangement with Related parties referred to in Sub Section (1) of 

Section 188. 
All contract/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were 
in ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. The disclosure of Related Party Transactions is given in 
“Note no. 49 of the Standalone Financial Statements” to this report The particulars of the material transactions as 
prescribed in Form AOC-2 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 has been included as Annexure 4 to this 
report. 
 
18. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments, etc.  under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
The Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, regarding to give loan or guarantee or 
provide security or make investments, to the extent applicable. As required the details of the said loan or guarantee 
or security or investments, to the extent applicable under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
is attached as Annexure 5 and also disclosed in Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.  

 
19. Annual Return 
As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return is available on the website of 
the Company  and can accessed at https://www.jsw.in/groups/jsw-projects-limited. 
 
20. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators 
There were no orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and 
Company’s operations. 
 
21. Fixed Deposits 
Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public in terms of Section 73, 74, 75, 76 and all applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
22. Particulars of Employees 
The details of the employee(s) as required pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013, read along with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, is attached as Annexure 6. In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as 



amended, a statement showing the names of Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the names and 
other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules annexed as 
Annexure 7. 
 
23. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 
Your Company follows an Anti-Sexual Harassment JSW Group Policy in line with the Requirements of Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Act).  The 
Company has formed Internal Committee for various workplaces to address complaints pertaining to sexual 
harassment in accordance with the POSH Act. The Company has a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment, 
which ensures a free and fair enquiry process with clear timelines for resolution. There were no cases/complaints 
filed during the year under review under the POSH Act. 

 
24. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure 8. 

 
25. Health, Safety and Environment 
Your Company is committed to ensure healthy and safe working. Your Company has complied with all the 
applicable health, safety and environmental protection laws to the extent applicable. 
 
26. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your 
Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013: 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 
b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and  
f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

27. General 

The Board of Directors states that no disclosure or reporting is    required in respect of the following matters as 

there were no transactions or applicability pertaining to these matters during the year under review: 

i) Fraud reported by the Auditors to    the Board of Directors of the Company. 

ii) Scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit 

of employees. 

iii) Change in the nature of business of the Company.  

i) Instances of transferring the funds to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

ii) Issue of bonds / warrants / any other convertible securities except as stated in this Report. 

iii) the details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

(31 of 2016) during the year alongwith their status as at the end of the financial year March 31, 2023. 



iv) Instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

 
28. Appreciation  
Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for co-operation and assistance received from Government 
authorities, financial institutions, banks, vendors, customers, shareholders and other business associates during the 
year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed 
services by all the employees of the Company 
 
For and on behalf of the  
Board of Directors  
 
                Sd/-                                                          Sd/- 
P. Nagendra Kumar               Vineet Agrawal        
Managing Director                Director 
DIN:- 08010964                  DIN:- 02027288 
              
Date: 06.09.2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE- 1 

 
FORM NO. AOC.1 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Part "A": Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries                       Rs. in Lakhs 
Name of the subsidiary BMM Ispat Limited 

 
 

JSW New Age 
Private Limited 

Lexapar Analytics 
Private Limited 

JSW 
Multiventures 
Private 
Limited* 

Reporting Currency INR INR INR INR 
Share Capital 25,709.87 201.00 1.00 36.00 
Reserves & surplus 2,62,076.30 (10.40) (0.64) (32.59) 
Total assets 3,68,886.28 194.24 0.51 3.59 
Total Liabilities 81,100.11 3.63 0.15 0.18 
Investments - 0.90 - - 
Turnover 3,68,945.72 - - - 
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 16,964.63 (3.64) (0.33) (31.41) 
Provision for taxation 4,756.02 - - - 
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 12,208.61 (3.64) (0.33) (31.41) 
Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil 
% of shareholding 58.47% 99.99% 90.00% 100% 
*Became subsidiary on November 16, 2022, by acquisition of shares. 
 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: -JSW New Age Private Limited, Lexapar 
Analytics Private Limited and JSW Multiventures Private Limited 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: - Not applicable 
 

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures Statement 
pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 
 
The Company has no associate or joint venture company during the period under review. 
 
For and on behalf of the  
Board of Directors  
 
 
         Sd/-                                                                  Sd/- 
P. Nagendra Kumar               Vineet Agrawal        
Managing Director                Director 
DIN:- 08010964                  DIN:- 02027288 
             
 
        Sd/-                                                                 Sd/- 
Bhushan Prasad                 Shilpa N. Satra 
Chief Financial Officer                   Company Secretary             
 
Date: 29.05.2023 
Place: Mumbai 



 
ANNEXURE- 2 

 

Annual Report on CSR Activities  
 
 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

The CSR Policy of the Company shall be guided by the regulatory frameworks, international standards & best 
practices and industry norms. The CSR Policy of the Company will be applicable in close coordination with the 
Company/ Group policies on Human Rights, Social Development & Community involvement and other 
Sustainability Policies as permissible within the ambit of the CSR Policy of the Company pursuant to Section 135 
of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 along 
with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
2. Composition of CSR Committee as on 31.03.2022: 

  

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation / Nature 
of Directorship 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 

during the year 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year 

1 Mr. Vineet 
Agrawal  

Chairman of the 
Committee/Professional 
(Non-Executive) 

1 1 

2 Mr. Nagendra 
Kumar Paladugu  

Member of the 
Committee/Managing 
Director  

1 1 

3 Ms. Rakhi Jain Member of the 
Committee/Independent 
Director 

1 1 

  
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 
board are disclosed on the website of the company.: www.jsw.in/groups/jsw-projects-limited.  

  
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not applicable 

  
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not 
applicable 

  

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in ₹) 

Amount required to be set-off for 
the financial year, if any (in ₹) 

1 - - - 

 Total   

  
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.  13,904.41 lakhs  

  
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 278.09 lakhs. 

    (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.: Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 



(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 278.09 Lakhs  

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5). 

 278.09 Lakhs  Amount. Date of 
transfer. 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount. Date of 
transfer. 

- - - - - 

  

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not applicable 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 
No
. 

Name 
of the 
Projec

t. 

Item 
from 

the list 
of 

activitie
s in 

Schedul
e VII to 
the Act. 

Local 
area 

(Yes/No
). 

Location of 
the project. 

Project 
duratio

n. 

Amount 
allocate

d for 
the 

project 
(in ₹). 

Amoun
t spent 
in the 

current 
financi
al Year 
(in ₹). 

Amount 
transferre

d to 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
for the 

project as 
per 

Section 
135(6) (in 

₹). 

Mode of 
Implementati

on - Direct 
(Yes/No). 

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Through 
Implementing 

Agency 

State
. 

Distric
t. 

Nam
e 

CSR 
Registratio
n number. 

1. - - - - - - - - - - - 

 Total           

  

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from the 
list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Amount 
spent for 

the 
project 

(₹ in 
Lakh). 

Mode of 
implementation - 
Direct (Yes/No). 

Mode of implementation - 
Through implementing 

agency. 

State. District
. 

Name. CSR 
registration 

number. 

1. Sports 
promotion & 

institution 
building 

(vii) 

Yes 
Karnata
ka 

Bellari 

 
175.00 

No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 

2. Educational 
infrastructure 

& 
systems 

strengthening 

(ii) Yes 

Gujarat 
Ahme
dabad 

66.55 

No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 

3. Public health 
infrastructure, 

capacity 

(i) Yes Karnata
ka 
Odhish
a 

Banga
lore 
Bhuba
neshw

15.97 No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 



building & 
support 

programs 

Mahara
shtra 

ar 
Mumb
ai 

4. Nurturing 
aquatic & 
terrestrial 

ecosystems 
for better 

environment 
& reduced 
emissions 

(iv) Yes 

Mahara
shtra 

Mumb
ai 

11.80 No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 

5. General 
community 
infrastructure 
support & 
welfare 
initiatives 

(x) 

Yes 

Mahara
shtra 

Mumb
ai 

            
4.10  

No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 

6. Enhance 
Skills & rural 
livelihoods 
through 
nurturing of 
supportive 
ecosystems & 
innovations 

(ii) 

Yes 

Karnata
ka 

Bellari 

2.63 No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 

7. Promotion & 
preservation 
of art, 
culture & 
heritage 

(v) 

Yes 

Mahara
shtra 

Mumb
ai 

1.80 No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 

8. Project 
Management 

Cost 

 Yes 
Mahara
shtra 

Mumb
ai 

0.25 No JSW 
Foundation 

CSR00003978 

 Total    278.09    

  

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not applicable 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable  

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 278.09 lakhs  

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs. Lakh) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 
section 135(5) 

Rs. 278.09 Lakhs  

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 278.09 Lakhs  

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -- 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
activities of the previous financial years, if any 

-- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 
[(iii)-(iv)] 

-- 

  
 



 
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable  

  

Sl. No. Preceding 
Financial 

Year. 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in ₹) 

Amount spent 
in the 

reporting 
Financial Year 

(in ₹). 

Amount transferred to any 
fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per section 
135(6), if any. 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial 

years. (in ₹) Name of 
the Fund 

Amount 
(in ₹). 

Date of 
transfer. 

1. - - - - - - - 

 Total       

  

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

Not applicable 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. No. Project 
ID. 

Name of 
the 

Project. 

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced. 

Project 
duration. 

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 
(in ₹). 

Amount 
spent on 

the 
project in 

the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 

₹). 

Cumulative 
amount 

spent at the 
end of 

reporting 
Financial 

Year. (in ₹) 

Status of 
the project 

- 
Completed 
/Ongoing. 

1 - - - - - - - - 

 Total        

  
 
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year: Not applicable 

 (asset-wise details). 
  

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 

their address etc. 

 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 

capital asset). 

 

 

 

 



 

    

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5): Not applicable 

We hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR Objectives 
and Policy of the Company. 

 
For and on behalf of the  
Board of Directors  
 
 
 
        Sd/-                                                                        Sd/- 
P. Nagendra Kumar                Vineet Agrawal        
Managing Director                 Chairman of the CSR Committee/Director 
DIN: - 08010964                     DIN: - 02027288 
              
 
Date: 06.09.2023 
Place: Mumbai 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNEXURE- 3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 



 
 
 
 



 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 



 
ANNEXURE- 4 

 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto  
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: - 
No. Name(s) of 

the related 
party and 
nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 
contracts / 

arrangements 
/ transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts  

/ 
arrangements 
/ transactions 

Salient terms 
of the 

contracts or 
arrangements 

or 
transactions  
including the 
value, if any 

Justification  
for entering 

into such 
contracts or 

arrangements 
or 

transactions 

date(s) 
of 

approval 
by the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any 

Date on 
which the 

special 
resolution 

was 
passed in 
general 
meeting 

as 
required 

under first 
proviso to 

section 
188 

 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) 
NIL 

 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: - 

No Name(s) of the 
related party 
and nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts / 

arrangements / 
transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts  / 

arrangements / 
transactions 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 

arrangements or 
transactions  including 

the value, if any 

date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, if 
any 

 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 
There was no material transaction during the year with related parties referred to in Section 188 (I) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. However, details of transactions with related parties, during the year, is given in Note 49 of the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company. 

 
For and on behalf of the  
Board of Directors  
 
 
            Sd/-                                                                Sd/- 
P. Nagendra Kumar                Vineet Agrawal        
Managing Director                    Director 
DIN:- 08010964                     DIN:- 02027288 
              
 
Date: 06.09.2023 
Place: Mumbai 



 
 
 

ANNEXURE- 5 
 

DETAILS OF THE LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT MADE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
SR. 
No. 

Name of the entity Particular of loans, guarantees or 
investment 

Relation Rs. In 
Lakhs 

1. JSW New Age Private Limited 
 

Investments in Equity Shares 
 

Subsidiary 200.00 

2. Reinforce Tech Services Private 
Limited 

Loan Other 1500.00 

3. South West Mining Limited Loan Other 1500.00 
4. Everbest consultancy services 

Private Limited 
Purchase of Equity share of JSW 
Multiventures Private Limited 

Other 36.00 



 ANNEXURE- 6 
LIST OF EMPLOYEES 

 
Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
 
Sr. 
No. 

Requirement Information Ratio % change 

I. The ratio of the remuneration of
each director to the median
remuneration of the employees of
the company for the financial year 

There is no director who is drawing 
remuneration from the Company 
during the period under review. 

NA 

Ii. % increase in remuneration of
each director, chief financial
officer, chief executive officer,
company secretary or manager, in
the financial year 

Ms. Shilpa Satra 
(Company Secretary) 

23.08 % increase in remuneration of 
company secretary. 

Iii. % Inecrease in the median
remuneration of employees in the
financial year 

14.86% 

Iv. No. of permanent employees on
the rolls of the Company 

24 

V. Average percentile increase
already made in the salaries of
employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison
with the percentile    increase    in
the managerial  remuneration and
justification thereof and point out
if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration 

Percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year: 1.92% 
 
Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration: 23.08% 

Vi. Affirmation that the remuneration 
is as per the remuneration policy 
of the Company 

Affirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company 



 
ANNEXURE- 7 

LIST OF EMPLOYEES 
Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
1. Details of Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and 
2. Employees employed throughout the financial year and were in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000/- 
 

Name of the 
Employees 

Designation 
Age (in 
Years) 

Qualification 
Date of 
Commencement 
of employment 

Remuneration 
(in Amount) 

Total 
Experience 

Last 
Employment  

% of 
equity 
shares 
held 

Whether 
Relative 
of any 
Director 
/Manager 

Details of Top Ten employees in terms of 
remuneration drawn 

              

ABHIJIT  
MANNA 

VICE PRISIDENT 

54 

BACHELOR OF 
SCIENCE, 
BACHELOR OF 
TECHNOLOGY 

01-07-2018 
                   
1,02,39,312  

34.14 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

PUNEET  
NARAYAN 

GENERAL 
MANAGER 

52 

BACHELOR OF 
ENGINEER 
(ELECTRICAL 
ENGINEERING) 

01-09-2017 
                       
49,33,632  

31.13 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

DASTANE  
ASHUTOSH 
UDAY 

GENERAL 
MANAGER 

48 

BACHELOR OF 
ENGINEER 
(CHEMICAL) 

01-01-2016 
                       
44,95,584  

26.10 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

BANDRI 
BALAJI  
PRASANNA 

GENERAL 
MANAGER 

61 

BACHELOR OF 
COMMERCE , 
CHARTERED 
ACCOUNTANT 

01-11-2012 
                       
36,06,684  

28.09 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

SELVA 
KUMAR 

DEPUTY 
GENERAL 
MANAGER 51 

B.TECH 
/ELECTRONICS 

01-01-2016 
                       
35,19,324  

28.11 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

B  PRANESH 
DEPUTY 
GENERAL 
MANAGER 41 

BACHELOR OF 
ENGINEER 
(MECHANICAL) 

01-07-2018 
                       
33,90,156  

21.02 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 



PRAVEEN 
GOYAL 

ASSISTANT 
GENERAL 
MANAGER 

38 

BACHELOR OF 
COMMERCE , 
CHARTERED 
ACCOUNTANT 

01-06-2011 
                       
33,04,716  

12.09 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

SATISH 
KUMAR M 

ASSISTANT 
GENERAL 
MANAGER  

42 

BACHELOR OF 
COMMERCE, 
MASTERS OF 
BUSINESS 
ADMINISTRATION 

01-09-2017 
                       
24,39,036  

18.11 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

SREENIVASA 
RAO C H 

SENIOR 
MANAGER  55 

BBM, DIPLOMA 
(MECHANICAL) 

15-03-2011 
                       
18,40,320  

30.07 
JSW Steel 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

NISHANT 
BAGHMAR 

MANAGER  

24 

BACHELOR OF 
COMMERCE , 
CHARTERED 
ACCOUNTANT 

21-11-2022 
                       
15,00,000  

0.33 - NIL NIL 

Employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration of not less than Rs.1,02,00,000 per annum 
NIL 

Employed for the part of the year and were in receipt of remuneration aggregating to not less than Rs.8,50,000 per month 
NIL 

 
*All employees are on the roll of the Company and no such employees is a relative of any director or manager of the Company. 
 
For and on behalf of the  
Board of Directors  
 
 
 
           Sd/-                                                                  Sd/- 
P. Nagendra Kumar                Vineet Agrawal        
Managing Director                   Director 
DIN:- 08010964                     DIN:- 02027288 
              
 
Date: 06.09.2023 
Place: Mumbai 



ANNEXURE- 8 
 

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 
A.  Conservation of Energy:-  
 (i) the steps taken conservation of or 

impact    on energy 
The Company has always been frontrunner in continual 
improvement of its operational performance. 
 
Through focused efforts, during the year the Company 
achieved some significant achievements i.e. 
 
1) CDQPP 

 
In CDQPP The VFD drives for CEP pumps have been 
procured & installed, required wiring & 
commissioning and necessary logic modifications are 
planned during capital overhauling of the unit in next 
financial year,  as it requires OEM expertise / 
supervision before changing the operation from 
normal flow control to VFD control. 
 

2) DRI 
 

The process tail gas generated from pressure 
swing absorption units, enriched with carbon dioxide 
is effectively utilized by generating electric power, 
instead of releasing to atmosphere. The waste flue gas 
generated from process gas heater, after drying, is used as 
seal gas to reduce the nitrogen consumption. The furnace 
top gas after cooling and scrubbing, is recycled back 
(75%) to process to reduce Corex gas consumption. Net 
thermal energy consumed during the year FY23 was 
2.29 Gcal/Ton. 

 
 (ii) the steps taken by the company for 

utilising alternate sources of energy 
NA 

 (iii) the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment 

- 

B. Technology absorption:-  
 (i) the efforts made towards technology 

absorption; 
NA 

 
 (ii) the benefits derived like product 

improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution; 

CDQ & CDQPP regarding energy conservation, 
technology absorption, and foreign exchange earnings, 
there were no major milestones during FY-23 

 (iii) in case of imported technology 
(imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)- 

 (a) the details of technology imported; 
 (b) the year of import; 



 (c) whether the technology been fully 
absorbed; 

 (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof; and 

 (iv) the expenditure incurred on 
Research and Development. 

 

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-  
 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of 

actual inflows during the year and  the 
Foreign Exchange outgo during the year 
in terms of actual outflows. 

Foreign Exchange earned Nil Foreign Exchange outgo Rs. 
5.31 Crores. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
To the Members of JSW Projects Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of JSW Projects Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone 
balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement 
of cash flows and standalone statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial 
statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit and other 
comprehensive income, its cash flow and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sub-section 
(10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the standalone financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the 
responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report, including 
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed 
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements. 
 

1. Valuation of Investments in Un-Quoted Securities 
 The Key Audit Matter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Company has investments in equity and preference shares which are un-quoted. 
 
These instruments are measured at fair value with the corresponding fair value changes recognized in other comprehensive income. 
The valuation is performed by the Company using a fair value hierarchy as applicable below: 

 Level 1: valuations based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.  
 Level 2: valuations based on other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly.  

 
 Level 3: valuations based on unobservable inputs for the asset. The valuation of investments is inherently subjective – most 

predominantly for the level 2 and level 3 investments since these are valued using inputs other than quoted prices in an active 
market. 

 

Key inputs used in the valuation of individual level 2 investments are market price of quoted investments, illiquidity discount etc. In 
addition, the Company determines whether objective evidence of impairment exists for individual investments. 
 

Given the inherent subjectivity in the valuation of level 2 investments, we determined this to be a significant matter for our audit. This 
was an area of focus for our audit and an area where significant audit effort was directed. 
 

Disclosures on the investments are included at Note 8 and Note 48.7 to the Standalone Financial Statements. 
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 Auditor’s Response 
 Our audit procedures included, among other things, an assessment of the methodology and the appropriateness of the valuation 

models and inputs used by management to value investments.  
 
Further, we assessed the valuation of all individual investments to determine whether the valuations performed by the Company were 
within a predefined tolerable differences threshold.  
 
As part of these audit procedures we assessed the accuracy of key inputs used in the valuation including observable and non-
observable inputs. 
 
We also evaluated the Company’s assessment whether objective evidence of impairment exists for individual investments.  
 
Based on these procedures, we have not noted any material differences outside the predefined tolerable differences threshold. 

 

2. Accuracy and completeness of disclosure of related party transactions and compliance with the provisions of Companies Act 
2013 

 The Key Audit Matter 
 Significant part of Company's revenue relates to transactions with related parties as disclosed in Note 49. 

 
We consider the related party transactions to be significant to the audit as the risk is that if these transactions are not conducted at 
arm’s length, and/or the accounting treatment of the rights and obligations of these transactions are not correct, it could influence 
the results of the Company. 
 
Furthermore, for financial reporting purposes, Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, requires complete and appropriate disclosure of 
transactions with related parties. 

 Auditor’s Response 
 Our procedures in relation to the disclosure of related party transactions included:   

 
a. Obtaining an understanding of the Company’s policies and procedures in respect of the capturing of related party transactions 

and how management ensures all transactions and balances with related parties have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements.   

 
b. Obtaining an understanding of the Company’s policies and procedures in respect of evaluating arms-length pricing and approval 

process by the audit committee and the board of directors. 
 
c. Read minutes of shareholder meetings, board meetings and audit committee minutes regarding Company’s assessment of 

related party transactions being in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length.  
 
d. Tested, on a sample basis, related party transactions with the underlying contracts/agreements, confirmation letters and other 

supporting documents, as part of our evaluation of the disclosure. 
 
e. Assessing management evaluation of compliance with the provisions of Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act. 
 
Evaluating the disclosures through reading of statutory information, books and records and other documents obtained during the 
course of our audit.  

 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of the Management for the Standalone Financial statements 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, change in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:  

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.  

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 

by the management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-

section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:  
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 

the purposes of our audit.  
 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination 
of those books. 
 

c. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone 
Statement of Cash Flow and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account. 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 
 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of Section 
164 of the Act. 
 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.  
 

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
has not prescribed other details under sub-section (16) of Section 197 which are required to be commented upon by us; 
 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 in its standalone financial statements. Refer 
Note-45.4 to the financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
iv. Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 

that: 

A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned 

or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 

any other persons or entities, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,  

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; or 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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B) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are either material either 

individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 

come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (A) and (B) contain any material 

misstatement. 
 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the financial year.  

  
 

For H P V S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 137533W 

 

 
 

 

Vaibhav Dattani 
Partner 
M.No. 144084 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23144084BGPRHA8266 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 29, 2023 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of 
JSW Projects Limited of even date 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records examined by us 

in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 
 

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 
(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a phased manner which, in our 

opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, 
plant and equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year.  
(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against 

the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made 
thereunder. 

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our 
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification of inventory by the Management, as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with 
in the books of account. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed in respect of such 
physical verification. 

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the 
basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial 
statements including clarifications provided to the banks by the Company, the quarterly returns / statements along with subsequent 
clarifications filed by the Company with the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. 

iii. (a) During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee and provided security to 

companies as follows:                                                                                                                                             (Rs in lakhs) 

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in 
nature of 

Loans 
A. Aggregate amount granted/ provided 

during the year 
    

- Others  - - 3,000.00 - 

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 
in respect of above cases 

    

- Others - - 8,072.92 - 
 

(b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans to companies are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The 
Company has not made investments, provided guarantee, provided security or granted advances in the nature of loans to companies, 
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. 

(c) The Company has granted loans and advance in the nature of loans during the year to companies where the schedule of repayment 
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular. 

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any 
other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days. 

(e) There were no loans / advances in nature of loans which were granted to same parties, and which fell due during the year and were 
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans/advances in nature of loan. 

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any 
terms or period of repayment to any parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 
(iii) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Section 185 of the Act in respect of grant of loans and providing guarantees and 
securities, as applicable. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securities, to the extent applicable. 
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v. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the 
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 
(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by Central Government for 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost 
records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete. 

vii. (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and other statutory dues applicable to it. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the 
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) There are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, goods and service tax, income tax, duty of excise, duty of excise, value added 

tax, and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as follows: 

Name of the Statute Nature of 
the Dues 

Amount 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

Period to which the 
amount relates 

Forum where dispute is pending 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2383.95 A.Y.2018-19 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 
 

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender. 
 (b) The Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 
 (c) The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (ix) (c) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 
 (d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis 

have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 
 (e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any 

entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, an associate or a joint venture. 
 (f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 

companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
x. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the 

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 (b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 

the period. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
xi. (a) No material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 
 (b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by cost auditor/secretarial auditor or by us 

in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 
 (c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.  
xii. The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xii) (a), (b) and (c) 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
xiii. Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been 

disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
xiv. (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
 (b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have been considered by 

us. 
xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting under 

clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
xvi. (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, 

the reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 (b) The Company is not engaged in any non-banking financial / housing finance activities. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xvi) 

(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
(d) We have been informed by the management that as at March 31, 2023 as per the definition of Group under Core Investment 

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment Company (CIC) which is registered and three CICs which are 
not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India, forming part of the promoter group. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
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xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable to 
the Company. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 55 to the standalone financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realization 
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge 
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company 
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a year of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a year of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to 
a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the 
said Act.  

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent CSR amounts as at the end of the previous financial year, to a 
Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of said financial year in compliance with the provisions of sub-section (6) of 
section 135 of the Act. 

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no 
comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report. 

 

 

 

For H P V S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 137533W 

 

 
 

 

Vaibhav Dattani 
Partner 
M.No. 144084 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23144084BGPRHA8266 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 29, 2023 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW Projects Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls   

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 

financial controls system with reference to these standalone financial statements. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to 
these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 

statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 

 

 

For H P V S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 137533W 

 

 
 

 

Vaibhav Dattani 
Partner 
M.No. 144084 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23144084BGPRHA8266 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 29, 2023 

 

 

 



JSW Projects Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars  Notes  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

I ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant & equipment 5 14,028.08                      10,045.41                   
(b) Capital work-in-progress 6 -                                7,395.10                     
(c) Right of use asset 7 -                                471.10                        
(d) Investment in subsidiary, associates and joint ventures 8 50,236.99                      50,080.99                   
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investments 9 60,818.99                      55,265.96                   
(ii) Other financial assets 10 1,444.36                       1,338.97                     

(f) Current tax assets (net) 11 3,037.81                       2,100.85                     
(g) Other non-current assets 12 717.45                          1,169.79                     
Total non-current assets 1,30,283.68                  1,27,868.17               

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 13 10,470.97                      6,701.03                     
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 14 11,369.19                      7,690.95                     
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 15 672.25                          900.27                        

16 46.15                            410.44                        
(iv) Loans 17 8,072.92                       19,604.50                   
(v) Finance lease receivables 18 23,295.75                      60,485.65                   
(vi) Other financial assets 19 1,004.53                       2,523.57                     

(c) Other current assets 20 4,324.22                       3,699.47                     
Total current assets 59,255.98                     1,02,015.88               
Total assets 1,89,539.66                  2,29,884.05               

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 21 100.00                          100.00                        
(b) Other equity 22 97,517.04                     80,891.16                   
Total equity 97,617.04                     80,991.16                  
Liabilities

1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 23 25,358.91                      65,483.68                   
(ii) Lease liabilities 24 -                                425.27                        
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 -                                2,478.20                     

(b) Provisions 26 54.85                            82.94                          
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 27 625.14                          9,039.09                     
(d) Other non-current liabilities 28 5,084.34                       5,003.05                     
Total non-current liabilities 31,123.24                     82,512.23                  

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowing 29 49,388.27                      56,371.71                   
(ii) Lease liabilities 30                                  -                             76.37 
(iii) Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 31 86.20                            186.82                        
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises 31 4,916.67                       6,060.84                     

(iv) Other financial liabilities 32 5,620.35                       2,224.51                     
(b) Provisions 33 2.01                              16.91                          
(c) Other current liabilities 34 785.88                          1,443.50                     
Total current liabilities 60,799.38                     66,380.66                  
Total liabilities 91,922.62                     1,48,892.89               
Total equity and liabilities 1,89,539.66                  2,29,884.05               
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1 to 61

As per Report of Even Date
For H P V S & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 137533W

SD/- SD/- SD/-

Vaibhav L Dattani Vineet Agrawal P. Nagendra Kumar
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No.: 144084 DIN: 02027288 DIN: 08010964
UDIN No.:23144084BGPRHA8266

SD/- SD/-

Shilpa Satra Bhushan Prasad
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date   : May 29, 2023 Membership No : A45953



JSW Projects Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars  Notes  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

I Income
(a) Revenue from operations 35 45,385.13                    49,863.82                  
(b) Other income 36 8,066.13                     8,106.27                    

Total Income (I) 53,451.26                   57,970.09                 

II Expenses
(a) Cost of materials and services consumed 37 22,103.12                    18,068.92                  
(b) Employee benefits expense 38 409.84                        487.30                      
(c) Finance costs 39 11,549.28                    15,884.35                  
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 40 2,441.55                     1,791.29                    
(e) Other expenses 41 2,005.25                     1,858.58                    

Total expenses (II) 38,509.04                   38,090.44                 

III Profit before tax (I-II) 14,942.22                 19,879.65                

IV Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 42 9,889.79                     8,140.11                    
(b) Deferred tax 43 (8,417.87)                   (6,209.52)                  

Total tax expense (IV) 1,471.92                    1,930.59                  

V Profit for the year (III-IV) 13,470.30                   17,949.06                 

VI Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 44(A)(i) (11.12)                        28.40                        
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 
        reclassified to profit or loss 44(A)(ii) 1.30                           (18.40)                      
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
       Re- Measurement of the defined benefit plans 44(B)(i) 20.74                         (0.92)                        
  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 
       reclassified to profit or loss 44(B)(ii) (5.22)                          0.32                         

Total other comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (VI)
5.70                           9.40                         

VII Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) 13,476.00                   17,958.46                 

VIII Earnings per equity share (of 
(a) Basic     (in 50 1,347.03                     1,794.91                    
(b) Diluted   (in 50 1,347.03                     1,794.91                    

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1 to 61

As per Report of Even Date
For H P V S & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 137533W

SD/- SD/- SD/-

Vaibhav L Dattani Vineet Agrawal P. Nagendra Kumar
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No.: 144084 DIN: 02027288 DIN: 08010964 
UDIN No.:23144084BGPRHA8266

SD/- SD/-

Shilpa Satra Bhushan Prasad
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date   : May 29, 2023 Membership No : A45953





JSW Projects Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 14,942.22                          19,879.65                       
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2,441.55                            1,791.29                         
Interest income (1,445.79)                           (2,418.74)                        
Profit on sales of investments (113.48)                             (302.63)                           
Dividend income (3.70)                                 (0.07)                              
Finance cost 11,549.28                          15,884.35                       
Lease expenses 122.18                               112.45                            
Financial Lease Amortisation and depreciation 37,208.82                          31,977.08                       
Fair value from investment in preference shares (5,698.99)                           (5,120.80)                        
Ind AS adjustment impact due to fair valuation of financial assets (170.10)                             62.83                              
Operating profit before working capital changes 58,831.98                         61,865.41                      
Adjustments for increase/decrease in operating assets/ liabilities:
Increase in inventories (3,769.94)                           (225.26)                           
Increase in trade receivables (3,678.24)                           (1,351.86)                        
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (104.27)                             2,613.19                         
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 330.86                               (161.50)                           
Decrease in trade payables (1,244.79)                           (202.41)                           
Decrease in provisions (42.99)                               (8.63)                              
Decrease in other liabilities (523.31)                             (667.10)                           

(9,032.68)                         (3.57)                              
Cash generated from operating activities 49,799.30                         61,861.84                      
Direct taxes paid (Net of refund received) (10,790.74)                         (3,595.16)                        
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 39,008.56                          58,266.68                       

B. Cash flow from investing activities
(Purchase of property, plant and equipment/addition to capital-work-in progress)/Capex Recoverable 937.13                               (4,283.33)                        
Loans and advances (given)/received back 11,530.57                          (5,430.00)                        
Profit on sales on investments 113.48                               302.63                            
Investment in subsidiaries (156.00)                             (210.55)                           
Interest received 2,964.83                            1,491.51                         
Dividend received 3.70                                  0.07                                
Net cash generated/(used) from investing activities (B) 15,393.71                         (8,129.67)                       

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Net proceeds from non-current borrowings (44,000.00)                         (44,880.00)                      
Repayment of lease liabilities (122.18)                             (112.45)                           
Premium paid on redemption of debentures (773.06)                             (377.42)                           
Interest paid (9,735.05)                           (14,045.68)                      
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (54,630.29)                       (59,415.55)                    
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (228.02)                             (9,278.54)                        
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 900.27                               10,178.81                       
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 15) 672.25                              900.27                           

Reconciliations part of cash flows
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023  
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 
Opening balance

1,21,855.39                       1,66,696.38                    
Lease liabilities (including current maturities) 501.64                               34.41                              
Addition/Disposal of lease liabilities (including current maturities) (425.28)                             543.58                            
Cashflows
Cash flows (repayment)/proceeds (44,000.00)                         (44,880.00)                      
Lease payment (122.18)                             (112.45)                           
Non cash changes
1. Amortised of lease expense                                108.71 36.10                              
2. Gain on lease termination (62.89)                               -                                 
3. Amortised borrowing cost 32.88                                 39.01                              
Closing Balance at the end of the year 
Borrowings other than finance lease obligation                            77,888.27                      1,21,855.39 
Lease liabilities                                       -                                501.64 
-The Cash Flow statement is prepared using the indirect method set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flow"
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements - 1 to 61

As per Report of Even Date
For H P V S & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 137533W

Vaibhav L Dattani Vineet Agrawal P. Nagendra Kumar
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No.: 144084 DIN: 02027288 DIN: 08010964 
UDIN No.:23144084BGPRHA8266

Shilpa Satra Bhushan Prasad
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date   : May 29, 2023 Membership No : A45953

Borrowings other than finance lease obligation (including Current maturities of long-term borrowing 
included in other financial liabilities note 29)

Particulars



JSW Projects Limited 
 

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 
 

1.General Information 
JSW Projects Limited (“the Company”) is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture on Job work basis 
of Direct Reduce Iron (DRI), Coke Dry Quenching (CDQ) and Captive Power Generation which are ultimately 
used in the manufacture of steel and steel products. 
 
JSW Projects Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956. The 
registered office of the Company is JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051. 
 
The Company has production facilities in the state of Karnataka.  
 

2.Significant Accounting policies 
 

I. Statement of compliance 
Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended.  
 
Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (together hereinafter referred to as 'Standalone Financial Statements' or 'financial statements'). 
 
These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2023. 
 

II. Basis of preparation and presentation 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in 
use.  
 
These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the 
accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair 
values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting  
policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements. 
 
Current and non-current classification: 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. 
  
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:  

 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal 
operating cycle. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;  

 it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or  
 it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least 12 months after the reporting date.  
All other assets are classified as non-current.  
 
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:  

 it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;  
 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 



 it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue 
of equity instruments do not affect its classification.  

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.  
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only. 
 

III. Investment in subsidiaries  
Investment in subsidiaries is recognised in the Company’s financial statements at cost. Where the carrying 
amount of an investment in greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to 
its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of 
investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

IV. Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company recognizes 
revenues on dispatch of goods from factory, net of discounts, sales incentives, rebates granted, returns, sales 
taxes and duties when significant risks and rewards of ownership pass to the customer. Revenue from sale of 
by-products are included in revenue. 
Revenue from sale of power is recognized when delivered and measured based on the bilateral contractual 
arrangements. 
 

      Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably).  

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s 
net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

V. Leasing 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

The Company as a lessor 

Amount due from the lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the 
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to the accounting periods so as to 
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Where the leases are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such 
benefits accrue. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on straight-line basis over the lease term. 

The Company as a lessee 

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the 
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.  



Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised 
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which 
case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent 
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in 
the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Arrangements in the nature of lease 

The Company enters into agreements, comprising a transaction or series of related transactions that does not 
take the legal form of a lease but conveys the right to use the asset in return for a payment or series of 
payments. In case of such arrangements, the Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 17 – Leases to the 
lease element of the arrangement. For the purpose of applying the requirements under Ind AS 17 – Leases, 
payments and other consideration required by the arrangement are separated at the inception of the 
arrangement into those for lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. 

VI. Foreign currencies 
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in 
which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).  

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised 
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, 
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates 
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
they arise except for: 

 exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future 
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment 
to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; 

 exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks and 
 exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which 

settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the 
foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from 
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss on repayment of the monetary items 
 

VII. Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are 
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use 
or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs 
incurred on that borrowing during the period less any interest income earned on temporary investment of 
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds 
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses 



the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying 
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.  

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active 
development of a qualifying asset. 

VIII. Employee Benefits 
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have 
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.  

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected 
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) 
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement of financial position 
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will 
not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan 
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: 

 service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments 
and settlements); 

 net interest expense or income; and 
 re-measurement 
 
The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 
‘Employee benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.  

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents the actual deficit 
or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the 
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future 
contributions to the plans.  

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the 
offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs. 

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and 
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for that service.  
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of 
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date. 
 

IX. Taxation   
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance 
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws in 
the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit 



before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.  
 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a 
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the 
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such 
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient 
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to 
reverse in the foreseeable future. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in 
the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet 
when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company. 

Current and deferred tax for the period. 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are related to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are 
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred 
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting 
for the business combination. 

X. Property, plant and equipment 
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, 
any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any 
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing 
costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, 
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the 



Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul 
expenditure is capitalised as the activities undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from 
the asset.  

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement 
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under construction account. At the point when 
an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate 
category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the 
commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised where the asset is 
available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until a period of commissioning has been 
completed. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalised.  

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative 
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Freehold land is not depreciated. 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as 
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1st April, 2015, measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.  

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and 
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as 
per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following categories 
of assets: 

a) In respect of the fixed assets, 8 MW Captive Power Plant (CPP), based on technical evaluation useful life of 
asset is 20 years:  

b) Depreciation on Plant and Machineries of Captive Power Plant (CPP) is provided on Written Down Value 
(WDV) method.  

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates 
them separately based on their specific useful lives.  

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease, except where the 
lease is convertible to freehold land under lease agreements at future dates at no additional cost. 

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned 
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease 
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. 

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from the overhaul. 
The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss if 
the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit. 

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations 
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective 
basis. 

XI. Intangible assets 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each 



reporting year, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible 
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses.  

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are is taken as 3 years. 

The Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised as on transition 
date, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of transition date.  

 

XII. Impairment of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of Property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate 
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest 
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.  
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) 
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for 
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case 
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 
 

XIII. Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on 
weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all 
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 
 

XIV. Cash and cash equivalents:  
Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.  

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company’s cash management 
 

XV. Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 



during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing 
shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares). 
 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest 
and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity 
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and 
the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share 
options by the employees. 
 

XVI. Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of 
past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to 
settle such an obligation.  

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying 
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 
third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received 
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

Onerous contracts 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting 
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract. 
 

XVII. Fair value measurements 
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with accounting policies at each 
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use in 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participant at in their economic best interest.  

A fair value measurement of a non-financing asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use 
of unobservable inputs.  

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:  

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 



 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

  
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period. 

XVIII. Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair 
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

A. Financial assets 
a) Recognition and initial measurement 

i) The Company initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issues and subordinated 
liabilities on the date on which they originate. All other financial instruments (including regular way 
purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which 
the Company a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or liability is 
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition or issue.  
 

ii)   In case of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates the Company has chosen to 
measure its investments at deemed cost. 
 

iii) The Company has elected to apply the requirements pertaining to Level III financial instruments of 
deferring the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price 
prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. 

 
b) Classification of financial assets  
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at; amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated at FVTPL: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 
and  

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other 
receivables. A debt instrument is classified as FVOCI only if it meets both the of the following conditions and 
is not recognised at FVTPL; 



The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets; and  

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, 
the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss 
in the statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding 
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held 
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind 
AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI 
to Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.  

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 
significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains and 
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in statement of profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in 
statement of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included 
in the 'other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized The Company's right to 
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends 
will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the a 
mount of dividend can be measured reliably.  

c) Derecognition of financial assets  
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in 
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such 
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. 
 



On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to 
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial 
asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer 
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference 
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the 
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that 
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would 
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be 
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. 
 

d) Impairment  
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other 
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at 
FVTPL. 

 
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring 
as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company 
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash 
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for 
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering 
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar 
options) through the expected life of that financial instrument. 

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month 
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses 
and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the 
reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months. 
 
If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in 
the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, 
the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses. 
 
When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, 
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date 
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and 
considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is 
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. 

 
For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss 
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

 
Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the 
Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance 
is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and 
adjusted for forward-looking information. 
 



The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied 
to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income 
and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet. 
 

e) Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of 
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral 
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected 
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial 
recognition. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets 
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the ‘Other income’ line 
item.  
 

     B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
a) Classification as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 

 
b) Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. 

 
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain 
or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the 
Company's own equity instruments. 

 
c) Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'. 
 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is 
designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

 It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages 

together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 
 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.  

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if: 

 such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 
otherwise arise; 

 the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed 
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk 
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; 
or 

 it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire 
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109. 



 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item 
in the   Statement of Profit and Loss.  

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.  

d) Other financial liabilities: 
 
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 

e) Derecognition of financial liabilities: 
 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with 
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the 
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial 
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an 
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

f) Reclassification of financial assets: 
 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. 
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the 
business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The 
Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal 
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A 
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is 
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification 
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting year 
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

Original 
classification 

Revised 
classification 

Accounting treatment 

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortized cost and fair 
value is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on 
the new gross carrying amount. 

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair 
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to 
reclassification. 



 

  
3. Key sources of estimation uncertainty  
 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives are 
dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives 
based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, 
depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management. 

 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint- ventures and associates 

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are impaired requires 
an estimate in the value in use of investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have 
anticipated the future commodity prices, capacity utilization of plants, operating margins, mineable 
resources and availability of infrastructure of mines, discount rates and other factors of the underlying 
businesses / operations of the investee companies as more fully descried in note 7. Any subsequent changes 
to the cash flows due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of 
investments. 
 

 Provisions and liabilities 

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future 
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can reasonably be estimated.  The timing of 
recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to 
change. The amounts are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

 Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against 
the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to 
quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not 
recognized. 
 

 Fair value measurements 
When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial 
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 
using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair 
values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
 
 

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
amortised cost carrying amount. However, 
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against 
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if 
it had always been measured at amortised cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required. 

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. 
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss at 
the reclassification date. 



 Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the 
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

 Defined benefit plan: 
 

The cost of defined benefit plan and other postemployment benefits and the present value of such 
obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary escalations and mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 

4. Recent Pronouncements 
 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA 
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below: 

 
Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant 
accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The 
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

 
 

Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and 
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in 
paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on 
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating 
the impact, if any, in its financial statements. 

 
Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

 
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The 
definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. 
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject 
to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in 
financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not 
expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

 







JSW Projects Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2023

Note- 8 Investment in subsidiary, associates and joint ventures

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unquoted investments in equity instruments at cost (all fully paid) :
In Subsidiary

BMM Ispat Limited
*49,99,99,970 Equity shares (previous year 49,99,99,970) of 50,000.00                      50,000.00                    

New Age Private Limited
20,09,900 Equity shares (previous year 8,09,900) of 200.99                           80.99                           

#JSW Multiventures Private Limited
3,60,000 Equity shares (previous year nil) of 36.00                             -                              

Total 50,236.99                      50,080.99                    
50,236.99                      50,080.99                    

-                                -                              
50,236.99                      50,080.99                    

*Note 1:- Including 34,96,74,363 compulsory convertible debenture (previous year 34,96,74,363) of 
*Note 2:- 49,99,99,970 shares (previous year 49,99,99,970) of BMM Ispat Limited are pledged on behalf of BMM Ispat Limited

Note - 9 : Investments (non-current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Quoted investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI (all fully paid) :
In Others
JSW Steel Limited

21,300 Equity shares of 146.56                           156.05                         

JSW Holdings Limited
100 Equity shares (previous year 100) of 3.83                               4.10                             

Unquoted investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI (all fully paid) :
In Others
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited

50 Equity shares (previous year 50) of 13.93                             15.29                           

Unquoted investment in preference shares at FVTPL (all fully paid)
In Others
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited

60,654.67                      55,090.52                    

Total 60,818.99                      55,265.96                    
150.39                           160.15                         
150.39                           160.15                         

60,668.60                      55,105.81                    
164.32                           175.44                         

60,654.67                      55,090.52                    

Note -10: Other financial assets (non-current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered Good
Security deposits

To related party (refer note 49.b.2) 199.05                    252.39                   
To others 1,245.31                        1,086.58                      

Total 1,444.36                        1,338.97                      

Note - 11: Current tax assets (net)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Non current tax assets  (A)
Advance income tax (including TDS receivable) 28,399.13                      17,562.85                    

28,399.13                      17,562.85                    
Non current tax liabilities  (B)
Provision for income tax 25,361.32                      15,462.01                    

25,361.32                      15,462.01                    

Total (A-B) 3,037.81                      2,100.85                      

Note - 12: Other non current assets

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered good
Prepayment and others 717.45                           1,169.79                      

Total 717.45                           1,169.79                      

Note - 13: Inventories

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Inventories (at Cost)
Stores and spares 10,470.97                      6,701.03                      

Total 10,470.97                      6,701.03                      
Inventories have been pledge as a security against cash credit limit.

Aggregate Value of quoted investments at market Value
Aggregate value of unquoted investments at carrying amount
Investment at FVTOCI
Investment at FVTPL

Aggregate value of unquoted investments at carrying amount

Investment at deemed cost
Aggregate value of impairment

75,35,00,000 Zero coupon non convertible redeemable preference shares (previous year 75,35,00,000) of 

Aggregate value of quoted investments at carrying amount

# On November 16, 2022, the Company acquired 100.00% shareholding in JSW Multiventures Private Limited (‘JSW MPL’) by way of acquisition of equity shares from Everbest Consultancy 
Services Private Limited. Consequent to the aforesaid acquisition, JSW MPL is a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. November 16, 2022.
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Note - 14: Trade receivables

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Trade receivables considered good- secured -                                -                              
Trade receivables considered good- unsecured 11,369.19                      7,690.95                      
Trade receivables have significant increase in credit risk -                                -                              
Trade receivables- credit impaired -                                -                              
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss -                                -                              

Total 11,369.19                      7,690.95                      

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023  
Particulars

 Less than 6 
months  6-12 months  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 year  Total 

 (i) Undisputed - considered good                11,369.19                     -                     -                   -                                     -                       11,369.19 
 (ii) Undisputed- having significant increase in credit risk                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (iii) Undisputed- credit impaired                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (iv) Disputed-considered good                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (v) Disputed- having significant increase in credit risk                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (vi) Disputed- credit impaired                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   

 Total              11,369.19                      -                      -                    -                                      -                       11,369.19 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022  

Particulars
 Less than 6 

months 
 6-12 months  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 year  Total 

 (i) Undisputed - considered good                  7,690.95                     -                     -                   -                                     -                         7,690.95 
 (ii) Undisputed- having significant increase in credit risk                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (iii) Undisputed- credit impaired                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (iv) Disputed-considered good                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (v) Disputed- having significant increase in credit risk                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   
 (vi) Disputed- credit impaired                           -                        -                      -                    -                                      -                                    -   

 Total                7,690.95                      -                      -                    -                                      -                         7,690.95 
Credit risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in note 48.5
The credit period on sales of goods and services ranges from 1 to 15 days without security
Trade receivables have been given as collateral towards borrowing details relating to which has been described in note 23
Trade receivables from related parties details has been described in note 49.b.2
Trade receivables does not include any receivable from directors and officers of the company

Note - 15: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Balances with banks in current account 170.56                           899.45                         
Balances with banks in term deposit with maturity less than three months at inception 500.00                           -                              
Cash on hand 1.69                               0.82                             

Total 672.25                           900.27                         

Note - 16: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Balances with Banks
In term deposit accounts

In margin money with original maturity of more than twelve months at inception 46.15                             410.44                         
Total 46.15                             410.44                         

Note:- Earmarked with banks held as margin money for interest service for term loan from banks/as security for overdraft facilities.

Note - 17: Loans (current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Loan to related parties (refer note 49.b.2) -                                10,430.00                    
Loan to others 8,072.92                    9,174.50                  

Total 8,072.92                        19,604.50                    
Sub-classification of loans
Loan receivables considered good-secured -                                 -                               
Loan receivables considered good-unsecured 8,072.92                        19,604.50                    
Loan receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -                                 -                               
Loan receivables- credit impaired -                                 -                               

Note - 18: Finance lease receivables (current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Finance lease receivables                       23,295.75                     60,485.65 
Total 23,295.75                      60,485.65                    

Note - 19: Other financial assets (current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered good

-                                140.73                         
1,004.53                        2,382.84                      

Total 1,004.53                        2,523.57                      

Note - 20: Other current assets

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advance                         2,644.89                       2,643.89 
Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits 114.65                           768.05                         
Prepaid insurance and expenses 387.19                           283.26                         
Other assets 1,177.49                        4.27                             

Total 4,324.22                        3,699.47                      

-from related parties (refer note 49.b.2)
-from others

There is no amount due from director, other officer of the Company or firms in which any director is a partner or private companies in which any director is a director or member at any time 
during the reporting period.

Interest receivable 

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
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Note - 21: Share capital

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Authorised share capital
30,00,00,000 (previous year Nil) Preference shares of 30,000.00                -                          
25,00,00,000 (previous year 55,00,00,000) Equity shares of 25,000.00                55,000.00                 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital
10,00,000 (previous year 10,00,000) Equity shares of 100.00                    100.00                     

100.00                    100.00                     
Total 100.00                    100.00                     

21.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity Shares

No. of shares No. of shares
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,00,000          100.00              10,00,000                100.00                     
Add: Issued during the year -                    -                    -                         -                          
Less: Cancel during the year                      -                        -                              -                               -   
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,00,000         100.00              10,00,000               100.00                     

21.2 Terms / rights attached to equity shares

21.3 Disclosure of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares 
Particulars

 No. of shares  % of holding  No. of shares  % of holding 
10,00,000          100% 10,00,000                100%

21.4 Disclosure of equity shares held by promoters at the end of the year

 No. of 
shares 

 % of total 
Shares 

 % Change 
during the year  No. of shares  % of total Shares  % Change during 

the year 

 Sajjan Jindal Family Trust     10,00,000 100%                    -               10,00,000 100%  - 

Note - 22: Other equity

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

 Equity component of compound financial instruments 
Balance at beginning of the year -                         -                          
Add: Movement during the year 3,149.88                 -                          
Balance at end of the year 3,149.88                 -                           

 Capital reserve 
Capital reserve on account of amalgamation
Balance at beginning of the year                       97.49                        97.49 
Balance at end of the year                       97.49                        97.49 

 Retained Earnings 
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at beginning of the year 78,120.12                62,821.66                 
Add: Profit for the year 13,470.30                17,949.06                 
Net gain/(loss) on  re- measurement of the defined benefit obligation carried to OCI during the year 20.74                     (0.92)                       
Income tax on  re- measurement of the defined benefit obligation carried to OCI during the year (5.22)                      0.32                        
Transfer from/(to) debenture redemption reserve 350.00                    (2,650.00)                
Balance at end of the year 91,955.94               78,120.12                

 Other comprehensive income 
Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Balance at beginning of year 23.55                      13.55                       
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI (11.12)                    28.40                      
Income tax on net fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 1.30                       (18.40)                     
Balance at end of the year 13.73                     23.55                       

 Other reserve 
Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Balance at beginning of the year 2,650.00                 -                          
Transfer (to)/from retained earnings (350.00)                  2,650.00                  
Balance at end of the year 2,300.00                 2,650.00                  

97,517.04               80,891.16                

Nature and purpose of reserves
a) Capital reserve:-During amalgamation, the excess of net assets acquired, over the cost of consideration paid is treated as capital reserve.

c) Items of other comprehensive income

21.6 There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.

 Sajjan Jindal Family Trust 

b) Retained earning:- Retained earning are the profits that the company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve and debenture redemption reserve add any transfer from
debenture redemption reserve. Retained earnings includes re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.
Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company.

d) Debenture redemption reserve:-The Indian Companies Act requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures
are redeemed. Companies are required to maintain 10% as a reserve of outstanding redeemable debentures. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised
except to redeem debentures. 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income- The fair value change of equity instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in equity 
instrument through other comprehensive Income and subsequently not reclassified to the statement of Profit and Loss.

Promoters Name

21.7 There are no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Total

As at March 31, 2022As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

21.5 There are no bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the share holder.
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Note 23: Borrowings (non-current)

 Particulars 

 Non-current   Current 
maturities  Non-current   Current 

maturities 
Secured 
Rupee term loans from banks -                   -                 -                  17,000.00         

Unsecured loan
Rupee term loans from financial institution -                   12,500.00       22,500.00        7,500.00           
Rupee term loans from related parties (refer note 49.b.2) 9,500.00           13,900.00       20,000.00        28,400.00         

Unsecured debentures issued to others
2,300 (previous year: 2,650) rated, listed, zero-coupon, 
redeemable, non-convertible debentures of -                   23,000.00       23,000.00        3,500.00           

1,900 (previous year: Nil) Optionally-convertible debentures of 15,858.91          -                 -                  -                   

25,358.91          49,400.00       65,500.00        56,400.00         
Unamortised upfront fees on borrowing -                   (11.73)            (16.32)             (28.29)              

25,358.91        49,388.27      65,483.68       56,371.71        
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowing clubbed under 
other financial liabilities (refer note 29) -                   49,388.27       -                  56,371.71         

Total 25,358.91        -                 65,483.68       -                   

(i) 

(ii) Loan from financial institution carries interest @ 10.30%.

23.2 Terms of repayment loan from related parties

23.3 Terms of redemption and security details of non-convertible debentures (NCDs):

23.4 Terms of optionally-convertible debentures (OCDs):

Conversion Terms

Voluntary Redemption

Mandatory Redemption

The Conversion Date shall occur only post the expiry of 5th Anniversary from the date of allotment of the relevant OCDs to Investors ("OCD
The conversion price shall be the fair market value of per share of the Company determined an Independent Registered Valuer, less the
conversion discount of 20% on the fair market value.

The Investor shall at any time after the expiry of 6th anniversary but before the expiry of 9th anniversary, from the date of allotment of
respective tranche of OCDs, shall by giving atleast 7 days’ notice in writing, redeem the OCDs, either in part or in full, in one or more
tranches, at face value along with interest.

Interest is payable to the OCD holder(s) only for the period that is the shorter of (i) the period from the allotment date of the relevant
tranche of the OCDs to the date of conversion into Equity Shares or (ii) the period from the allotment date of the relevant tranche of the
OCDs to the date of Voluntary Redemption ("Total Interest Period").
In case the of conversion of relevant tranche of OCDs into Equity Shares, falls on any date after the expiry of 5th anniversary but before the
expiry of 6th anniversary, from the date of allotment of relevant tranche of OCDs, then no interest shall be payable by the Company.

In case the conversion of the relevant tranche of OCDs into Equity Shares, falls on any date after the expiry of 6th anniversary or in case of
Voluntary Redemption, the Company shall pay the OCD Holder an additional simple interest at the rate of 3.50% p.a. from the date of
allotment of the relevant tranche of OCD till the Conversion Date / Voluntary Redemption.
In case the OCD are required to be mandatorily redeemed in accordance with Mandatory Redemption, then the OCD Holder shall not be
eligible for any interest on the OCDs, for the OCD Tenure and the Company shall pay the OCD Holder a redemption premium at the rate of
8.00% ("Redemption Premium").
The Interest shall be payable, at the time of conversion of the relevant OCDs, to the OCD Holder holding OCDs on the Conversion Date
(defined below), as per the register maintained by the Company.

The aforesaid NCDs are secured by third party pledge of 66,81,590 equity shares of JSW Steel Limited held by JSW Holdings Limited,
1,64,538 equity shares of JSW Steel Limited held by Sahyog Holdings Private Limited and 65,50,784 equity shares of JSW Energy Limited
held by JSW Investments Private Limited.

(i)  
(ii)  
(iii)  

The OCDs carry a coupon rate of 0.50% p.a., which shall accrue at the end of each Financial Year.

In the event the Investor has not exercised its option to convert the OCDs or redeemed the OCDs, prior to the Maturity Date in the manner
contemplated above , then the Company shall mandatorily redeem all of the subsisting OCDs at face value along with Redemption Premium 

(i) 36 months from the date of allotment in respect of Tranche 3 for redemption of NCDs 2300.

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

23.1 Terms of repayment and security details of loan from financial institution

The aforesaid term loan are secured by third party pledge of 30,00,000 equity shares of JSW Steel Limited held by JSW Holdings Limited and 
26,99,000 equity shares of JSW Energy Limited held by JSW Investments Private Limited.

2,300 Rated, listed, zero coupon, redeemable , non-convertible debentures (NCDs) allotted on 25th March, 2021 are redeemable at a
premium of 10.60% IRR not later than:

(iv)  
(v) Loan from body corporate carries interest @ 9.00% to 10.50%.
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Note - 24: Lease liabilities  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Non current Lease Liabilities                       -                  425.27 
                      -                 425.27 

Note - 25: Other financial liabilities (non-current)  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Accrued premium on non-convertible debentures                       -               2,478.20 
                      -              2,478.20 

Note - 26: Provisions (non-current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 46)                  50.18                  44.12 
Provision for leave encashment (refer note 46)                   4.67                  38.82 

                54.85                  82.94 

Note- 27: Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (refer note 54)                625.14             9,039.09 
625.14             9,039.09          

Note - 28: Other non-current liabilities

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Advance against BOOT agreement             4,937.73             4,937.73 
Payable for capex                146.61                  65.32 

           5,084.34            5,003.05 

Note - 29: Borrowing

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 23)           49,388.27           56,371.71 
         49,388.27          56,371.71 

Note - 30: Lease liabilities (current)  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Current lease liabilities                       -                    76.37 
                      -                    76.37 

Note - 31: Trade payables  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

                 86.20                186.82 
            4,916.67             6,060.84 
           5,002.87            6,247.66 

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2023

Unbilled dues  Less than 1 
year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

year  Total 

(i) MSME -                                   86.20                  -                 -                         -                    86.20 
(ii) Others 3,945.61                            703.53            137.78        127.71                   2.04            4,916.67 
(iii) Disputed due-MSME -                                        -                    -                 -                         -                          -   
(iv) Disputed due- Others -                                         -                     -                  -                         -                          -   

Total              3,945.61                789.73           137.78       127.71                   2.04            5,002.87 

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022

Unbilled dues  Less than 1 
year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

year  Total 

(i) MSME -                                 184.28                  -                 -                         -                 184.28 
(ii) Others 2,511.31                         1,077.22         2,204.90                267.41            6,060.84 
(iii) Disputed due-MSME -                                     2.54                  -                 -                         -                      2.54 
(iv) Disputed due- Others -                                         -                     -                  -                         -                          -   

Total 2,511.31                       1,264.04        2,204.90                -                 267.41            6,247.66 

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total
The provision for employee benefits includes annual leave and vested long service leave entitlements accrued and compensation claims made by employees.

Total

Total
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 0 days to 180 days. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid 
within the pre-agreed credit terms.

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 56)

 Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions 
Particulars

Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from date of transactions 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
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Note - 32: Other financial liabilities (current)  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 49.b.2)                431.51             1,713.49 
Premium payable on NCDs             5,188.84                387.49 
Payable towards capital expenditure                       -                  123.53 

           5,620.35            2,224.51 

Note - 33: Provisions (current)  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 46)                   1.40                    6.17 
Provision for leave encashment (refer note 46)                   0.61                  10.74 

                  2.01                  16.91 

Note - 34: Other current liabilities  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Statutory liabilities                754.61             1,153.25 
Other payables*                  31.27                290.25 

              785.88            1,443.50 
*Other Payable includes payable for employee benefits and other goods

Total

Total

The provision for employee benefits includes annual leave and vested long service leave entitlements accrued and compensation claims made by employees.

Total
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Note - 35: Revenue from operations

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

i) Services provided on contract basis
Conversion charges* 33,071.15                 35,214.85                 

ii) Sale of Products
Pellets Sales 137.82                      -                           
Power and Steam Sales 7,237.20                   6,227.59                   

Total (a) 40,446.17               41,442.44               
Other operating income 

Rental income: Finance lease rental income 4,938.96                   8,421.38                   
Total (b) 4,938.96                  8,421.38                  

Total (a+b) 45,385.13                49,863.82                

Contract balances

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Trade receivables (refer note 14)                  11,369.19                    7,690.95 
The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 1 to 15 days with or without security.

Note - 36: Other income

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

 a) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as FVTPL 
Bank deposits 102.48                      76.16                       
Other financial assets 1,415.27                   2,409.66                   

1,517.75                  2,485.82                  
b) Dividend income and profit on sale of mutual fund

Dividend from equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI 3.70                         0.07                         
3.70                          0.07                          

c) Miscellaneous income 
Fair value from investment in preference shares measured at FVTPL 5,564.14                   5,053.72                   
Profit on investment made in mutual fund measured at FVTPL 113.48                      66.13                       
Profit on sales of investments -                           236.50                      
Gain on Lease Termination 62.89                       -                           
Foreign exchange gain -                           4.15                         
Recovery of expenses 610.28                      -                           
Others 193.89                      259.88                      

6,544.68                  5,620.38                  
Total (a+b+c) 8,066.13                  8,106.27                  

Note - 37: Cost of materials and services consumed

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Consumption of stores, spares, gases and water 9,771.52                   6,372.66                   
Power and fuel 1,501.43                   1,005.62                   
Conversion charges 10,830.17                 10,690.64                 

Total 22,103.12                18,068.92                

Note - 38: Employee benefits expense

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Salaries and wages 395.30                      470.66                      
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 46) 14.08                       16.38                       
Staff welfare expenses 0.46                         0.26                         

Total 409.84                     487.30                     

*Conversion charges as per Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Policies (IGAAP) is 75,218.93 Lakhs which has been reduced by 42,147.78
Lakhs on account of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 4 adjustment and shown separately under other operating
income as rental income: Finance lease rental income of 4,938.96 Lakhs resulting in net decrease of revenue from operations by 37,208.82
Lakhs.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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Note - 39: Finance costs

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

a) Interest costs :-
Interest on borrowing and term loans                    7,574.42                  11,681.33 
Premium on non convertible debentures                    3,105.01                    3,185.08 
Interest on lease 47.33                       36.11                       

10,726.76                14,902.52                
b) Other borrowing cost

Pledge fees 742.05                      822.18                      
Others finance charges 80.47                       159.65                      

822.52                     981.83                     
Total (a+b) 11,549.28                15,884.35                

Note - 40: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 5) 2,332.84                   1,689.73                   
Amortisation of right of use asset (refer note 7) 108.71                      101.56                      

Total 2,441.55                  1,791.29                  

Note - 41: Other expenses

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Rent, rates and taxes 356.36                     431.62                      
Repairs and maintenance -                          0.17                         
Insurance 387.49                     361.15                      
Legal and professional fees 242.95                     342.42                      
Travelling expenses 5.85                         4.88                         
Foreign exchange loss 28.31                       -                          
Remuneration to auditors (refer note 57) 17.22                       19.55                       
CSR expenditure (refer note 49.b.1 and note 58) 278.09                     381.05                      
Guest house expenses 180.93                     278.15                      
Miscellaneous expenses 508.05                      39.59                       

Total 2,005.25                  1,858.58                  

Note - 42: Current tax 

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

In respect of the current year 9,871.78                   9,121.13                   
In respect of the prior years 18.01                       (981.02)                    

Total 9,889.79                  8,140.11                  

Note - 43: Deferred tax 

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Reversed through profit and loss (refer note 54) (8,417.87)                 (6,209.52)                 
Total (8,417.87)               (6,209.52)               

Note - 44: Other comprehensive income

Particulars  For the year ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
   Equity instruments through other compressive income (11.12)                      28.40                       

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1.30                         (18.40)                      

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
   Re- Measurement of the defined benefit plans 20.74                       (0.92)                       

(ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss (5.22)                       0.32                         
Total 5.70                        9.40                        
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45.1

45.2

45.3

45.4

45.5

45.6
 For the year 

ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year 
ended

March 31, 2022 

                  238.74                   162.35 

46. Employee benefits plans
46.1

46.2 

Asset Liability Matching Risk

Interest risk

Mortality risk

Salary risk

46.3.a

 For the year 
ended

March 31, 2023  

 For the year 
ended

March 31, 2022 
 Gratuity  Gratuity 

Components of employer expense
Current service cost 4.87                     4.56                     
Interest cost 5.04                     4.11                     
Expected return on plan assets -                       -                      
Actuarial losses/(gains) (20.74)                  0.92                     
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss                   (10.83)                      9.59 

Actual contribution and benefit payments for year 
Actual benefit payments (7.05)                    -                      
Actual contributions (10.83)                  9.59                     

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 
Present value of defined benefit obligation 51.58                   69.47                   
Fair value of plan assets -                       -                      
Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] -                       -                      
Unrecognised past service costs -                       -                      
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (51.58)                 (69.47)                

ii. Other Long-term benefits
a) Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement,
superannuation or resignation. Employee are entitled to encash leave while serving in the Company at the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation
of leave days.
The company also has leave policy for certain employees to compulsorily encash unavailed leave on 31st December every year at the current basic salary.

45. Other disclosures

Particulars

The following table sets out the unfunded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: 
i. Gratuity (unfunded )

The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at March 31, 2023 by M/S K 
A Pandit, Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were 
measured using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the
plan's liability.

a) Capital commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Defined contribution plans

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age
only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as
you go basis from own funds.
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision.

b) Guarantees provided to bank 
c)  Disputed liability in respect of income tax 

The Company has entered into lease agreement with JSW Steel Limited, for 39.81 acres (Previous year 39.81 acres) of land situated at Kurekupaa Village.
As per the terms of lease deed, the Company has paid refundable security deposit of 5,00,000 per acre (Total amount 1,99,05,000). An annual lease
rental of 

Defined benefit plans:
Under the Gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service until the
retirement age of 58, 60 and 62, without any payment ceiling. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years.
Under the Compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement,
superannuation or resignation. At the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of leave days.
The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

The Company is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain trade payable, other payable, trade receivable, other receivable and loan and
advances. The Management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements due to the same.

In the opinion of the Management, all the assets other than Fixed Assets and Non-Current Investments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of
business, at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Provision for depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate and not
in excess of what is required.

Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 

The Company makes Provident Fund and Pension Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised 14.08 lakhs (Previous year
16.38 lakhs) towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the
Company are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

d) Disputed liability in respect of indirect tax and interest thereon 79.34 lakhs (previous year 132.95 lakhs). Based on the relevant provision, demand is
likely to be deleted or substantially reduce and accordingly, no provision has been made.
The President has given his assent to the Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code") in September 2020. On 13 November 2020 the Ministry of Labour and
Employment released draft rules for the Code. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess
the impact once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact to its financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective.

Commitments

Particulars
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46.3.b
Particulars

 For the year 
ended

March 31, 2023  

 For the year 
ended

March 31, 2022 
 Gratuity  Gratuity 

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year 
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 69.47                   59.88                   
Current service cost 4.87                     4.56                     
Interest cost 5.04                     4.11                     
Actuarial (gains) / losses (20.74)                  0.92                     
Liability transferred out/divestment -                       -                      
Benefits paid (7.05)                    -                      
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 51.58                   69.47                  

Change in fair value of assets during the year 
Plan assets at beginning of the year -                       -                      
Expected return on plan assets -                       -                      
Actuarial gain / (loss) -                       -                      
Benefits paid -                       -                      
Plan assets at the end of the year -                       -                      
Actual return on plan assets -                       -                      
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.49% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets NA NA
Salary escalation 6.00% 6.00%
Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality tables  Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
2012-14 (Urban) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 
Actuarial Valuation Method
Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate next year  NA  NA 

46.3.c Experience adjustments 
Gratuity 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Present value of DBO 51.58                 69.47                        59.88                      55.05                    114.39                  
Fair value of plan assets -                    -                            -                         -                       -                       
[Surplus / (Deficit)] 20.74                 (0.92)                         3.41                       5.00                      8.18                     
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities                       -                                 -                              -                            -   -                       
Experience adjustments on plan assets                       -                                 -                              -                            -   -                       

46.3.d

Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (5.04)                         5.87                       (5.41)                    6.25                     
Future salary growth (1% movement) 5.90                          (5.15)                      6.27                     (5.52)                   
Attrition rate (1% movement) 0.71                          (0.80)                      0.59                     (0.65)                   

46.3.e Compensated Absences:

Particulars
 For the year 

ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year 
ended

March 31, 2022 
Present value of unfunded obligation (                       5.27                    49.56 
Expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss (                     (8.09)                      4.97 
Discount rate (p.a) 7.49% 7.25%
Salary escalation rate (p.a) 6.00% 6.00%

47 Segment information

Customer contributing more than 10% of Revenue

Particulars
 For the year 

ended
March 31, 2023  

 For the year 
ended

March 31, 2022 
JSW Steel Limited 45,385.13             49,863.82            

b) Long Service Award: The Company has a policy to recognise the long service rendered by employees and celebrate their long association with the
Company. This scheme is called – Long Association of Motivation, Harmony & Excitement(LAMHE). The award is paid at milestone service completion years
of 10, 15, 20 and 25 years.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The 
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting 
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

As per Ind AS 108, the Company is primarily engaged in the business of jobwork for CDQ ,DRI and generation of power for captive use, being intermediate 
products used for steel production.
The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company has chosen to review the profitability of CDQ/DRI and Power business collectively treating it 
as profit from CDQ/DRI business. Hence, the Company has identified one primary business segment i.e., CDQ/DRI. There is only one geographical segment 
i.e. India.

For the year ended March 31, 2022For the year ended March 31, 2023 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in 
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The present value of the defined benefit obligation has 
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined 
benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet.

Sensitivity Analysis: 

 Projected Unit Credit Method 
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50. Earnings per equity share:

For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

 Per Share  Per Share 
Basic / Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations                    1,347.03                    1,794.91 
Total basic/diluted earnings per share in (                   1,347.03                    1,794.91 

Basic and Diluted earnings per share:
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (                  13,470.30                  17,949.06 
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations 
(                 13,470.30                  17,949.06 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic/diluted earnings per share
(No.)

                 10,00,000                  10,00,000 

Earnings per share from continuing operations - basic and diluted (                    1,347.03                    1,794.91 

51. Operating lease arrangements
The Company as lessee:
Leasing arrangements:
Followings are the amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss:  

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Depreciation charged on Right to use assets                      108.71                       101.56 
Interest accrued on lease liability                        47.33                         36.10 
Gain on lease termination                       (62.89)                              -   

Total                        93.15                       137.66 

Future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:-

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Within one year                             -                         123.69 
After one year but not more than five years                             -                         506.98 
More than five years                             -                                -   

                            -                         630.67 
Less: Amount representing finance charges                             -                         129.03 

Total                              -                         501.64 

52. Financial Lease arrangement
The Company as Lessor (Finance Lease)  

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Received against Finance Lease Receivable                  23,295.75                  55,557.30 
Interest Income                             -                      4,928.35 

Total                 23,295.75                  60,485.65 

Future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable Finance leases are as follows:-

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Within one year                  23,295.75                  60,485.65 
After one year but not more than five years                             -                                -   
More than five years                             -                                -   

                 23,295.75                  60,485.65 
Less: Amount representing finance charges                             -                      4,928.35 

Total                 23,295.75                  55,557.30 

During the year company has recognised 
(previous year 
Lakhs), out of which Non-current lease liability is 
Lakhs ).

The company had total cash outflow for lease of 
non cash additions to right of use asset and lease liability. There are no future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced

Particulars
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55. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III
A. Financial ratio disclosure
The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

S NO Particulars Numerator Denominator As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022 Variance Variance (%) Reasons for 

Variance
(i) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.97                   1.54                   (0.56)                 (36.58%) (a)
(ii) Debt - Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.77                   1.51                   (0.74)                 (49.12%) (b)

(iii ) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available 
for Debt Service Debt Service 1.14                   1.16                   (0.02)                 (1.65%)

(iv) Return on equity ratio Net Profit after 
Taxes Shareholder’s Equity 15.09% 24.94% (9.85%) (39.49%) (c )

(v ) Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory NA NA NA NA

(vi) Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from 
operations

Average Trade 
Receivables 42.12                 51.35                 (9.23)                 (17.98%)

(vii) Trade payables Turnover ratio Purchases Average Trade 
Payables 92.89                 128.25               (35.36)               (27.57%) (d)

(viii) Net Capital Turnover ratio Revenue Working Capital 2.66                   1.81                   0.85                  47.23% (e)

(ix) Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after tax Revenue from 
operations 29.68% 36.00% (6.32%) (17.55%)

(x) Return on Capital Employed Earning Before 
Interest and Taxes Capital Employed 15.31% 16.88% (1.56%) (9.26%)

(xi) Return on Investments Net Profit after tax Total Equity 5.70% 3.62% 2.08% 57.39% (f)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

C. Other information:

Current ratio for FY 2022-23 is less due to re-payment of long term borrowings transferred to current maturity of borrowing.

Return on equity ratio for FY 2022-23 is less due to decreasing in profit
Trade payables turnover ratio is less due to decreasing in creditor in FY 2022-23

Return on investment ratio is high due to increasing in return on current investment

Debt equity ratio for FY 2022-23 is less due to re-payment of long term borrowings.

Net Capital Turnover ratio is high due to decreasing in working capital

B. Relation with struck off Companies

(i) Details of benami property held
The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

(ii) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(i) Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(iii) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 
2017.

(iv) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(vi) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded 
in the books of account of Company.

(vii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(viii) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance 
sheet date.

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was obtained. Periodical returns or statements of current assets 
filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC):
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(ix) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment:
The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipments( including ROU Assets). Thus the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies 
(Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 is not applicable in the given circumstances.

(x) Loans and Advances without specific terms of repayment:
The company has not given any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 
2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are: (a) repayable on demand; or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(xi) Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of JSW Projects Limited 

 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSW Projects Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the consolidated 
balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
consolidated financial statements’).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of 
other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as was audited by other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 
31, 2023, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sub-section (10) of section 143 of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained along with the consideration of the reports of other auditors referred to in the 
“Other Matters” paragraph in section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the 

responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including 

in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us and by other auditors 

of components not audited by us, as reported by them in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures 

performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
 

1. Valuation of Investments in Un-Quoted Securities 
 The Key Audit Matter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Holding Company has investments in equity and preference shares which are un-quoted. 
 

These instruments are measured at fair value with the corresponding fair value changes recognized in other comprehensive income. 
The valuation is performed by the Holding Company using a fair value hierarchy as applicable below: 

 Level 1: valuations based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.  
 Level 2: valuations based on other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly.  
 Level 3: valuations based on unobservable inputs for the asset. The valuation of investments is inherently subjective – most 

predominantly for the level 2 and level 3 investments since these are valued using inputs other than quoted prices in an 
active market. 

 
Key inputs used in the valuation of individual level 2 investments are market price of quoted investments, illiquidity discount etc. In 
addition, the Holding Company determines whether objective evidence of impairment exists for individual investments. 
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Given the inherent subjectivity in the valuation of level 2 investments, we determined this to be a significant matter for our audit. 
This was an area of focus for our audit and an area where significant audit effort was directed. 
 
Disclosures on the investments are included at Note 9 and Note 51.10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 Auditor’s Response 
 Our audit procedures included, among other things, an assessment of the methodology and the appropriateness of the valuation 

models and inputs used by management to value investments.  
 
Further, we assessed the valuation of all individual investments to determine whether the valuations performed by the Holding 
Company were within a predefined tolerable differences threshold.  
 
As part of these audit procedures we assessed the accuracy of key inputs used in the valuation including observable and non-
observable inputs. 
 
We also evaluated the Holding Company’s assessment whether objective evidence of impairment exists for individual investments.  
 
Based on these procedures, we have not noted any material differences outside the predefined tolerable differences threshold. 

2. Accuracy and completeness of disclosure of related party transactions and compliance with the provisions of Companies 
Act 2013 

 The Key Audit Matter 
 Significant part of Holding Company's revenue relates to transactions with related parties as disclosed in Note 52. 

 
We consider the related party transactions to be significant to the audit as the risk is that if these transactions are not conducted at 
arm’s length, and/or the accounting treatment of the rights and obligations of these transactions are not correct, it could influence 
the results of the Holding Company. 
 
Furthermore, for financial reporting purposes, Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, requires complete and appropriate disclosure 
of transactions with related parties. 

 Auditor’s Response 
 Our procedures in relation to the disclosure of related party transactions included:   

 
a. Obtaining an understanding of the Company’s policies and procedures in respect of the capturing of related party 

transactions and how management ensures all transactions and balances with related parties have been disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements.   

 
b. Obtaining an understanding of the Company’s policies and procedures in respect of evaluating arms-length pricing and 

approval process by the audit committee and the board of directors. 
 
c. Read minutes of shareholder meetings, board meetings and audit committee minutes regarding Company’s assessment of 

related party transactions being in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length.  
 
d. Tested, on a sample basis, related party transactions with the underlying contracts/agreements, confirmation letters and other 

supporting documents, as part of our evaluation of the disclosure. 
 
e. Assessing management evaluation of compliance with the provisions of Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act. 
 
Evaluating the disclosures through reading of statutory information, books and records and other documents obtained during the 
course of our audit.  

 
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Holding Company’s Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.  
 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit 
report of the other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the Group are 
responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible 
for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub section (3) of section 143 of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements  in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management and the Board of Directors. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management and the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation 
of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in consolidated financial 
statements of which we are independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Other Matters 
 

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of four subsidiaries (including one sub-subsidiary), whose 
financial statements include total assets of Rs. 3,69,084.48 lakhs as at March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs. 3,68,945.72 lakhs and net cash 
outflows of Rs. 5,990.08 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and have been audited by other auditors, which 
financial statements, and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of such other auditors. 
 
Our opinion on the above consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial 
statements of the subsidiaries, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order. 
 

2. As required by sub-section (3) of the Section 143 Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on 
separate financial statements of the subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph we report, to 
the extent applicable, that: 

 
a. We/the Other Auditor’s whose report we rely upon have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 
 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 
 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, none of the directors of 
the Group’s Companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of section 
164 of the Act. 
 

f. With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with 
reference to these Consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B” to this report. 
 

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the report of the 
statutory auditors of the subsidiaries, the remuneration paid during the year by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries to their 
respective directors is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed 
other details under sub-section (16) of Section 197 which are required to be commented upon by us 
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on 
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted in the “Other 
Matters” paragraph: 

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the 
Group – refer Note 48.5 to the consolidated financial statements. 

 
ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 

losses during the financial year on March 31, 2023; and 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group 
incorporated in India during the year ended, March 31, 2023. 
 

iv. Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that: 
A) The respective Management of the Group whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to 

us and the other auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other 

persons or entities, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,  

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or  

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

B) The respective Management of the Group whose financial statements have been audited under the Act has represented to 

us and the other auditors that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are either material either 

individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Holding Company from any person or entity, including foreign 

entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed by 

us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, 

nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A) and (B) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

 
v. The Holding Company or its subsidiaries has not declared or paid any dividend during the financial year.  
 
 

For H P V S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No – 137533W  
 
 
Vaibhav Dattani 
Partner 
M.No. 144084 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23144084BGPRHB4832 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 29, 2023  
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records examined by us in 
the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:  

(xxi)  Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies 
included in the consolidated financial statements are: 

Name CIN Nature of relationship 
with the Holding 
Company 

Clause number of the CARO 
report which is qualified or 
is adverse 

BMM Ispat Limited U13100KA2002PLC030365 Subsidiary of JSW Projects 
Limited 

(i)(c) 

   (iii)(d) 
   (iii)(e) 
JSW New Age Private 
Limited 

U72200MH2021PTC366372 Subsidiary of JSW Projects 
Limited 

(xvii) 

Lexapar Analytics Private 
Limited 

U72900MH2021PTC371840 Subsidiary of JSW New 
Age Private Limited 

(xvii) 

JSW Multiventures Private 
Limited 

U27209MH2022PTC377108 Subsidiary of JSW Projects 
Limited 

(xvii) 

 

 

For H P V S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No – 137533W  
 
 
Vaibhav Dattani 
Partner 
M.No. 144084 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23144084BGPRHB4832 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 29, 2023  
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

 
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements under clause (i) of sub-
section (3) of section 143 of the Act 
 
[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even date] 
 
Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of JSW Projects Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we 
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW Projects Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) 
and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Group have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statement and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statement criteria were established by the Holding Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls   
 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act.   
 
Auditors’ Responsibility   
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under sub-section (10) of section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the respective subsidiaries in 
terms of the reports referred to in the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements.  
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements 
 

A Holding Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Holding Company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Holding Company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Holding Company are being made only in accordance with 
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authorizations of management and directors of the Holding Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Holding Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.   
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements   
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with 
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.   
 
Other Matters 
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company in so far as it relates to three subsidiary 
companies (including one sub-subsidiary), is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies. 
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter. 
 
For H P V S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No – 137533W  
 
 
Vaibhav Dattani 
Partner 
M.No. 144084 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is 23144084BGPRHB4832 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 29, 2023 



JSW Projects Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  March 31, 2023

Particulars  Notes  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

I ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant & equipment 5 4,94,145.85                4,95,083.98                
(b) Capital work-in-progress 6 24,581.35                   8,661.17                     
(c) Right-of-use assets 7 15,219.59                   14,813.08                   
(d) Intangible assets 8 65.21                          55.77                          
(e) Intangible assets under development 8 158.09                        84.83                          
(f) Goodwill 61 1.18                            -                             
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments 9 60,818.99                   55,265.97                   
(ii) Loans 10 -                             0.92                           
(iii) Other financial assets 11 2,156.10                     1,943.72                     

(h) Current tax assets (net) 12 6,334.92                     4,779.47                     
(i) Deferred tax assets 13 -                             3,714.13                     
(j) Other non-current assets 14 6,945.00                     7,268.39                     
Total non-current assets 6,10,426.28               5,91,671.43               

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 15 42,548.61                   44,226.00                   
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 16 16,652.68                   17,539.80                   
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 17 7,490.67                     13,708.74                   

18 36,024.87                   10,750.60                   
(iv) Loans 19 34,962.89                   44,767.15                   
(v) Finance lease receivables 20 23,295.75                   60,485.65                   
(vi) Other financial assets 21 5,218.72                     5,126.58                     

(c) Other current assets 22 11,934.97                   14,189.10                   
Total current assets 1,78,129.16               2,10,793.62               
Total assets 7,88,555.44               8,02,465.05               

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 23 100.00                        100.00                        
(b) Other equity 24 3,79,557.41                3,55,788.24                
Equity attributable to owners of the company 3,79,657.41               3,55,888.24               

Non- controlling interests 2,35,871.38                2,30,772.56                
Total Equity 6,15,528.79               5,86,660.79               

Liabilities
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 25 55,881.93                   1,00,233.21                
(ii) Lease liabilities 26 50.82                          425.27                        
(iii) Other financial liabilities 27 -                             2,478.20                     

(b) Provisions 28 502.85                        500.16                        
(c) Deferred tax liabilities 29 1,690.20                     9,039.09                    
(d) Other non-current liabilities 30 5,084.34                     5,003.05                     
Total non-current liabilities 63,210.14                  1,17,678.98               

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 31 69,547.78                   66,222.78                   
(ii) Lease liabilities 32                         114.45                           76.36 
(iii) Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 33 3,191.84                     1,850.29                     
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises 12,662.38                   12,146.69                   

(iv) Other financial liabilities 34 10,951.92                   5,264.25                     
(b) Provisions 35 61.32                          62.57                          
(c) Other current liabilities 36 13,286.82                   12,502.33                   
Total current liabilities 1,09,816.51               98,125.27                  
Total Liabilities 1,73,026.65               2,15,804.25               
Total equity and liabilities 7,88,555.44               8,02,465.04               
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1 to 65
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Place: Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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JSW Projects Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars  Notes  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

I Income
(a) Revenue from operations 37 4,09,851.32                4,28,777.25              
(b) Other income 38 12,545.66                   10,923.52                 

Total Income (I) 4,22,396.98               4,39,700.77             

II Expenses
(a) Cost of materials and services consumed 39 3,09,327.38                2,78,062.49              
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and 
work in progress 40                      8,370.26                  (3,021.32)
(c) Employee benefits expense 41 6,738.02                     6,299.27                   
(d) Finance costs 42 15,933.12                   25,075.10                 
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 43 13,436.59                   11,899.24                 
(f) Other expenses 44 36,720.15                   33,812.12                 

Total expenses (II) 3,90,525.52               3,52,126.90             

III Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 31,871.46                 87,573.87               

IV Exceptional items -                            -                          

V Profit before tax (III-IV) 31,871.46                 87,573.87               

VI Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 45 9,889.79                     8,140.11                   
(b) Deferred tax 46 (3,661.85)                   10,962.19                

Total tax expense (VI) 6,227.94                   19,102.30               

VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 25,643.52                  68,471.57                

VIII Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
       loss 47(A)(i) (11.12)                        28.40                       
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be                      .       
reclassified to profit or loss 47(A)(ii) 1.30                           (18.40)                      
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
       Re- Measurement of the defined benefit plans 47(B)(i) 112.79                       102.87                     
  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be                   .      
reclassified to profit or loss 47(B)(ii) (28.39)                        (25.80)                      

Total other comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (VIII)
74.58                        87.07                      

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 25,718.10                  68,558.64                
Total Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the company 20,573.31                   47,486.66                 
Non Controlling interests 5,070.21                     20,984.91                 

X Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company 45.97                          54.81                       
Non Controlling interests 28.61                          32.26                       

XI Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company 20,619.28                   47,541.47                 
Non Controlling interests 5,098.82                     21,017.17                 

XII Earnings per equity share (of 
(a) Basic     (in 2,057.33                     4,748.67                   
(b) Diluted   (in 2,057.33                     4,748.67                   

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements 1 to 65
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JSW Projects Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 31,871.45                     87,573.87                      
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 13,436.60                     13,367.49                      
Amortization of discount and transaction cost 156.92                          -                                
Interest income (5,532.42)                      (6,080.93)                      
Profit on sales of property, plant & Equipment 150.72                          38.69                            
Profit on sales of investments (113.48)                         (302.63)                         
Dividend income (3.70)                            (0.07)                             
Finance cost 15,776.20                     24,584.88                      
Lease expenses 122.18                          112.45                           
Financial Lease Amortisation and depreciation 37,208.82                     31,977.08                      
Fair value from investment in preference shares (5,698.99)                      (5,120.80)                      
Ind AS adjustment impact due to fair valuation of financial assets (170.10)                         62.83                            
Operating profit before working capital changes 87,204.20                    1,46,212.86                 
Adjustments for movement in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 1,677.40                       (3,938.59)                      
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 887.13                          (3,060.75)                      
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets 2,027.06                       (8,829.04)                      
Increase in other financial assets (1,384.34)                      (1,477.85)                      
Increase in lease liabilities 165.27                          -                                
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 1,856.06                       (4,198.34)                      
Increase in provisions 93.49                            34.45                            
Increase in other liabilities 2,630.04                       4,381.88                        

7,952.10                      (17,088.24)                   
Cash flow from operations 95,156.30                    1,29,124.62                 
Income taxes paid (Net of refund received) (10,790.74)                    (3,595.16)                      
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 84,365.56                     1,25,529.46                   

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment/addition to capital-work-in progress (29,427.61)                    (10,805.86)                     
Payment towards Intangible assets under development (73.26)                          -                                
Proceeds from sale of property,  plant & Equipment (62.52)                          214.03                           
Net Proceeds from Other Bank Balances (25,638.57)                    (10,103.67)                     
Loans and advances (given)/received back 9,832.57                       (44,200.00)                     

-                               24,800.00                      
Profit on sales on investments 113.48                          -                                
Purchase of non-current investments -                               302.63                           
Investment in subsidiaries including fully compulsory convertible debenture (36.00)                          (210.55)                         
Interest received 7,051.46                       4,664.51                        
Dividend received 3.70                              0.07                              
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (38,236.74)                  (35,338.84)                   

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Net proceeds from non-current borrowings (48,353.61)                    (72,380.00)                     
Share issued 35.00                            81.10                            
Net proceeds from current borrowings 10,248.62                     -                                
Repayment of lease liabilities (122.18)                         (112.45)                         
Premium paid on redemption of debentures (773.06)                         (377.42)                         
Interest paid (13,381.73)                    (23,970.83)                     
Net cash generated/used in financing activities (C) (52,346.96)                  (96,759.60)                   
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (6,218.14)                      (6,568.98)                      
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13,708.74                     20,277.70                      
Add: Cash and cash equivalents Pursuant to Business combination 0.07                              0.02                              
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 17) 7,490.67                      13,708.74                     

Reconciliations part of cash flows
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 

                   1,66,455.99 2,37,828.72                   
                           501.64 34.41                            

Add: Addition on account of Business combination
Addition of lease liabilities (including current maturities) (260.00)                         543.58                           
Cashflow

(41,216.14)                    (72,380.00)                     
Lease payment (122.18)                         (112.45)                         

                              0.07 -                                
                           108.71 36.10                            

3. Gain on lease termination (62.89)                          -                                
189.80                          1,007.27                        

Borrowings other than finance lease obligation                    1,25,429.72                     1,66,455.99 
                           165.28                            501.64 

-The Cash Flow statement is prepared using the indirect method set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flow"
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements: refer note no 1 to 65

As per Report of Even Date
For H P V S & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 137533W
SD/- SD/- SD/-

Vaibhav L Dattani Vineet Agrawal P. Nagendra Kumar
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No.: 144084 DIN: 02027288 DIN: 08010964 
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Shilpa Satra Bhushan Prasad
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date : May 29, 2023 Membership No : A45953

Lease liabilities

1. Addition on account of Business combination

4. Amortised borrowing cost
Closing Balance at the end of the year 

Particulars

Particulars
Opening balance

Cash flows (repayment)/proceeds

Non cash changes

Borrowings other than finance lease obligation
Lease liabilities (including current maturities)

2. Amortised of lease expense

Loans repaid during the year (net)



JSW PROJECTS LIMITED 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 

31, 2023 
 

1.General Information 
JSW Projects Limited (“the Company” or “the Parent”) is primarily engaged in the business of 
manufacture on Job work basis of Direct Reduce Iron (DRI), Coke Dry Quenching (CDQ) and 
Captive Power Generation which are ultimately used in the manufacture of steel and steel 
products. 

 
JSW Projects Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India under the Companies 
Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is JSW Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai – 400 051. 

 
The Company has production facilities in the state of Karnataka.  

Subsidiary: 
Name of 

Subsidiary 
Country of 

incorporation 
Proportion 

of 
Ownership 

Interest 

 (Current 
year) 

Proportion 
of 

Ownership 
Interest 

(Previous 
year) 

Nature of operations 

BMM Ispat 
Limited 

 

India 

 
 

 

58.47% 58.47% Manufacturing and 
selling of steel and its 
allied products, Iron ore, 
coal, coke, brick earth, 
ores, Minerals and 
mineral substance, 
alloys and Metal Scrap 

JSW New Age 
Private Limited 

India 99.99% 99.99% 

 

Business of trading 
activities 

Lexapar 
Analytics 
Private Limited 
(Subsidiary of 
JSW New Age 
Private Limited) 

India 

 

90.00% 90.00% 

 

Business of trading 
activities 

JSW 
Multiventures 
Private Limited 

India 100.00% - 

 

Business of trading 
activities 

 
JSW Projects Limited” The company” together with its subsidiary is herein referred to as the “Group 
Company” or “Group”. 



 
 

2.Significant Accounting policies 
 

I. Statement of compliance 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.  
 
Accordingly, the Group Company has prepared these Consolidated Financial Statements which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(together hereinafter referred to as 'Consolidated Financial Statements' or 'financial statements'). 
 
These Consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 
29, 2023. 
 

II. Basis of preparation and presentation 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard 
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the 
accounting policy hitherto in use.  
 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost 
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial 
liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the 
accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all 
the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements. 
 
Current and non-current classification: 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current 
classification. 
  
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:  

 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal 
operating cycle. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;  

 it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or  
 it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.  
All other assets are classified as non-current.  
 
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:  

 it is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle;  
 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
 it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Group does not have 

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 



reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.  

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.  
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only. 
 

III. Basis of Consolidation 
The subsidiary companies are consolidated on line by line basis in accordance with Ind AS 110 on 
“Consolidated Financial Statement “. Interest of the minority shareholders in the subsidiaries profits 
or losses and net worth is displayed separately in the consolidated financial statement. 
Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.   

For the purpose of consolidation, the financial statements of the subsidiaries are drawn up to March 
31, 2023 which is the reporting period of Group. 

The Excess of cost of investment in subsidiary companies over the parent’s portion of equity is 
recognised in the financial statement as goodwill. When the cost to the parent of its investment in 
subsidiary companies is less than the parent portion of equity, the difference is recognised in the 
financial statement as Capital Reserve. 

Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:  

i. The amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date the parent- subsidiary 
relationship came into existence and  

ii. The minorities share of movement in equity since the date the parent- subsidiary came 
into existence. 
 

IV. Business combinations 
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration 
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of 
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the group, Liabilities incurred by the Group 
to the former owners of the acquire and the equity interests issued by the group in exchange for 
control of the acquire. Acquisition related costs are generally recognized in statement of Profit and 
Loss as incurred. 
 
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised 
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that: 

 deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit 
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and 
Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively; 

 liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the 
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 
Share-based Payments at the acquisition date; and 

 assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance 
with that Standard. 
 

Business Combination Involving Entities Under Common Control 
 

A business combination involving entities or businesses under common control is a business 
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the 



same party or parties both before and after the business combination and the control is not 
transitory. 

Business Combination involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for 
using the pooling of interest method based on the predecessor values retrospectively for all periods 
presented. 

The pooling of interest method is considered to involve the following: 

 The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts. 
 No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The 

only adjustments that are made are to harmonies accounting policies and tax adjustments if 
any. 

 The components of other equity of the acquired companies are added to the same 
components within other equity except that any share capital and investments in the books 
of the acquiring entity is cancelled and the differences, if any, is adjusted in the opening 
retained earnings. 

 The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated 
as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in 
the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if 
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information shall be 
restated only from that date. 
 

V. Goodwill 
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of 
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating 
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination. 
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or 
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to 
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the 
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for 
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss 
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. 
On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in 
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal. 

 

VI. Revenue recognition 
The Group recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to 
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods or services.   
  
Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price 
concessions, incentives, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be 
provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties.  
  
The Group recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered to 
customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the control over product 
is transferred to the customer. In contracts where freight is arranged by the Group and recovered 



from the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obligation and revenue is 
recognized when such freight services are rendered. 
 

     Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment 
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 
and the amount of income can be measured reliably).  

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits 
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is 
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

VII. Leasing 
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. 
 
The Group as a lessor 
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on 
a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned. 
 
The Group as a lessee 
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease 
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 
 
Right-of-use-assets 
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial 
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset 
at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term  
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost 
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life 
of the asset. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment test. 
 
Lease Liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable 
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value guarantees.  
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in 
the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the average borrowing rate at 
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. 



 
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain 
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases 
that are considered of low value (i.e. below Rs 5,00,000). Lease payments on short-term leases and 
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

VIII. Foreign currencies 
The functional currency of the Group Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic 
environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Group Company is Indian National 
Rupee (INR).  

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are 
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each 
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates 
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
retranslated. 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
in which they arise except for: 

 exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction 
for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are 
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; 

 exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency 
risks and 

 exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation 
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net 
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other comprehensive 
income and reclassified from equity to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on 
repayment of the monetary items 
 

IX. Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
period in which they are incurred. 

The Group Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the 
actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any interest income earned 
on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to 
the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. 
In case if the Group borrows generally and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures 
on that asset.  



The Group Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it 
suspends active development of a qualifying asset. 

X. Employee Benefits 
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when 
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.  

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual 
reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes 
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected 
immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net 
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined 
benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: 

 service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on 
curtailments and settlements); 

 net interest expense or income; and 
 re-measurement 
 
The Group Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in 
the line item ‘Employee benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past 
service costs.  

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represents the 
actual deficit or surplus in the Group Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from 
this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of 
refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.  

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer 
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related 
restructuring costs. 

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual 
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.  
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present 
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the reporting date. 
 
 
 
 



XI. Taxation   
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in 
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other 
applicable tax laws in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. 
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because 
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never 
taxable or deductible.  
 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of 
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the 
initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments 
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group Company is 
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary 
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible 
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the 
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the 
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover 
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority. 

Current and deferred tax for the period. 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are related to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and 
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 



Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the 
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination. 

XII. Property, plant and equipment 
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts 
and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from 
the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended 
use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of 
decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into 
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure 
is capitalised as the activities undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from 
the asset.  

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under construction account. At the 
point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is 
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation 
commences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any obligatory 
decommissioning costs are capitalised where the asset is available for use but incapable of operating 
at normal levels until a period of commissioning has been completed. Revenue generated from 
production during the trial period is capitalised.  

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or 
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated. 

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment 
as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1st April, 2015, 
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.  

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its 
estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than 
freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, 
using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013 except in respect of following categories of assets: 

a) In respect of the fixed assets, 8 MW Captive Power Plant (CPP), based on technical evaluation 
useful life of asset is 20 years:  

b) Depreciation on Plant and Machineries of Captive Power Plant (CPP) is provided on Written Down 
Value (WDV) method.  

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group 
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.  

Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease, except where the lease is convertible to 
freehold land under lease agreements at future dates at no additional cost. 



Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis 
as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained 
by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their 
useful lives. 

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from 
the overhaul. The carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated 
life of the economic benefit. 

The Group Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, 
if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting 
estimate on a prospective basis. 

XIII. Intangible assets 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation 
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting year, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are 
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.  
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are is taken as 3 years. 

XIV. Impairment of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill 
At the end of each reporting period, the Group Company reviews the carrying amounts of Property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a 
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated 
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be 
impaired. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.  
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 



increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of 
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 
 

XV. Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are 
determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price 
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 

 
XVI. Cash and cash equivalents:  

Cash and cash equivalent in the Consolidated Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.  

For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are 
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management. 
 

XVII. Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus 
element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation 
of shares). 
 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for 
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating 
to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered 
for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could 
have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury 
shares held by the Group to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees. 
 

XVIII. Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), 
as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably 
estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.  

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect 
of the time value of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

 



Onerous contracts 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An 
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group Company has a contract under which the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received from the contract. 
 

XIX. Fair Value Measurement 
The Group Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with accounting 
policies at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.  

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the group. 

The fair value of asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use in pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participant at in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financing asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable 
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

 
XX. Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are 
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, 
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 



financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

A. Financial assets 
a) Recognition and initial measurement 

i) The Group Company initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issues 
and subordinated liabilities on the date on which they originate. All other financial 
instruments (including regular way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised 
on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. A financial asset or liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an 
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.  
 

ii)   In case of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates the Company has 
chosen to measure its investments at deemed cost. 
 

iii) The Group Company has elected to apply the requirements pertaining to Level III financial 
instruments of deferring the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the 
transaction price prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date of transition 
to Ind AS. 

 
b) Classification of financial assets  
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at; amortised cost, FVTOCI or 
FVTPL 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is 
not designated at FVTPL: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash flows; and  

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income 
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This 
category generally applies to trade and other receivables. A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI 
only if it meets both the of the following conditions and is not recognised at FVTPL; 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 
income (OCI). However, the Group Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and 
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. On 
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from 



the equity to consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI 
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business 
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive 
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Group Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling 
of the amounts from OCI to Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.  

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset 
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL 
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any 
gains and losses arising on remeasurement recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
The net gain or loss recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss incorporates any 
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'other income' line item. 
Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized The Group's right to receive the dividends is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the 
entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the a 
mount of dividend can be measured reliably.  

c)  Derecognition of financial assets  
The Group Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, 
the Group Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for 
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group Company continues to recognise the financial 
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised 
in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on 
disposal of that financial asset. 
 
On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an 
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying 
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing 



involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those 
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the 
part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer 
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise 
been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that 
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues 
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values 
of those parts. 
 

d) Impairment  
The Group Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on 
financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade 
receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial 
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL. 

 
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are 
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to 
receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted 
effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group 
estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial 
instrument. 

The Group Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal 
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Group Company measures the loss allowance for that 
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected 
credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash 
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, 
are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months. 
 
If the Group Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected 
credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the 
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit 
quality as compared to the previous period, the Group Company again measures the loss 
allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses. 
 
When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, the Group Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the 
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit 
losses. To make that assessment, the Group Company compares the risk of a default occurring 
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the 
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable 
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases 
in credit risk since initial recognition. 

 



For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result 
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Group always 
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

 
Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, 
the Group Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected 
credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical 
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. 
 
The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally 
applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet. 
 

e) Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument 
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received 
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter 
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial 
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the 
‘Other income’ line item.  
 

     B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
a) Classification as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as 
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. 

 
b) Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group Company are 
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 
Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. 
No gain or loss is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, 
issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. 

 
c) Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial liabilities'. 
 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading 
or it is designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

 It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 



 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group 
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.  
A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL 
upon initial recognition if: 

 such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
that would otherwise arise; 

 the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which 
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s 
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is 
provided internally on that basis; or 

 it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits 
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109. 

 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on 
remeasurement recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss 
recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the 
financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss.  

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss.  

d) Other financial liabilities: 
 
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 

e) Derecognition of financial liabilities: 
 
The Group Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations 
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments 
with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial 
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the 
terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the 
debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition 
of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss. 

f) Reclassification of financial assets: 
 

The Group Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. 
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments 
and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made 
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business 
model are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the 
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s 
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs 



when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 
If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the 
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting year following the 
change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

 

 
3. Key sources of estimation uncertainty  
 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. 
Such lives are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also 
their likely economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative 
efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the 
best information available to the Management. 

 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint- ventures and associates 

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are impaired 
requires an estimate in the value in use of investments. In considering the value in use, the 
Directors have anticipated the future commodity prices, capacity utilization of plants, operating 
margins, mineable resources and availability of infrastructure of mines, discount rates and other 
factors of the underlying businesses / operations of the investee companies as more fully 
descried in note 15. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above 
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of investments. 
 

Original 
classification 

Revised 
classification 

Accounting treatment 

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference 
between previous amortized cost and fair value is 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross 
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new 
gross carrying amount. 

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference 
between previous amortised cost and fair value is 
recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to 
reclassification. 

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative 
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. 
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always 
been measured at amortised cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new 
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required. 

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to 
Statement of Profit and Loss at the reclassification date. 



 Provisions and liabilities 
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will 
be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can reasonably be 
estimated.  The timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances which may be subject to change. The amounts are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
 

 Contingencies 
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 
against the Group. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are 
very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed 
in the notes but are not recognized. 
 

 Fair value measurements 
When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial 
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is 
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are 
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such 
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
 

 Taxes 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management 
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies. 
 

 Defined benefit plan 
The cost of defined benefit plan and other postemployment benefits and the present value of 
such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and mortality rates etc. Due to 
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation 
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date. 
 

4. Recent Pronouncements 
 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 
On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by 
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from 
April 1, 2023, as below: 

 
Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements 
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than 
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other 
information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary 



users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment 
to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

 
 

Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes 
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases 
and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition 
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer 
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible 
temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements. 

 
Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

 
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting 
estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition 
of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts 
in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting 
estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way 
that involves measurement uncertainty.  
The Group does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements. 
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note - 9: Investments (non-current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Quoted investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI (all fully paid) :
In Others
JSW Steel Limited

21,300 Equity shares of 146.56                   156.05                    

JSW Holdings Limited
100 Equity shares (previous year 100) of 3.83                       4.10                        

Unquoted investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI (all fully paid) :
In Others
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited

50 Equity shares (previous year 50) of 13.93                     15.30                      

Unquoted investment in preference shares at FVTPL (all fully paid)
In Others
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited

60,654.67              55,090.52               

Total 60,818.99             55,265.97              
Aggregate value of quoted investments at carrying amount 150.39                   160.15                    
Aggregate Value of quoted investments at market Value 150.39                   160.15                    
Aggregate value of unquoted investments at carrying amount 60,668.60              55,105.82               
Investment at FVTOCI 164.32                   175.45                    
Investment at FVTPL 60,654.67              55,090.52               

Note - 10: Loans (non-current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Loans (Unsecured) (as amortised cost) -                        -                         
To Employees -                        0.92                        

Total -                        0.92                        

Note -11: Other financial assets (non-current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered Good
Interest accrued on term deposits 5.92                       3.21                        
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 277.90                   194.48                    

Security deposits
to related party (refer note 52.b.2) 199.05                   252.39              
to others 1,831.59                1,652.01                 
Less: allowance for doubtful deposit (158.36)                 (158.36)                  

Total 2,156.10               1,943.72                
Note:- Earmarked with banks held as margin money for interest service for term loan from banks.

Note - 12: Current tax assets/(Liabilities) (net)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Non current tax assets  (A)
Income taxes paid under protest 1,866.36                1,866.36                 
Advance income tax (including TDS receivable) 29,829.88              18,325.31               

31,696.24             20,191.67              
Non current tax liabilities  (B)
Provision for income tax 25,361.32              15,412.20               

25,361.32             15,412.20              

Total (A-B) 6,334.92              4,779.47                

Note -13: Deferred tax assets (non-current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Deferred tax assets -                        3,714.13                 
Total -                        3,714.13                

Note - 14: Other non current assets

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered good
Prepayment and others 717.45                   1,169.79                 
Capital advances 4,017.34                3,350.75                 
Security deposits 334.99                   334.87                    
Gratuity fund balance (Net of liability) 75.07                     -                         
Pre-paid expenses 123.93                   3.99                        
Advances to suppliers and others considered doubtful 762.16                   763.69                    
Less: Allowances for doubtful advances (762.16)                 (763.69)                  
Balances with statutory and govt authorities 1,704.22                2,436.99                 
Less: Allowances for doubtful advances (28.00)                   (28.00)                    

Total 6,945.00               7,268.39                

Note - 15: Inventories

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Inventories (at Cost)
Stores and spares 18,002.58              12,837.80               
Raw materials (at cost) 18,812.38              17,103.80               
Finished goods (at cost or net realisable value) 5,733.65                14,284.40               

Total 42,548.61             44,226.00              
Inventories have been pledge as a security against cash credit limit and loan taken by group.
Details of Stock-in-transit (included in above inventories)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Raw materials 4,004.18                1,205.11                 
Total 4,004.18               1,205.11                

75,35,00,000 Zero coupon non convertible redeemable preference shares 
(previous year 75,35,00,000) of 
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Note - 16: Trade receivables

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Trade receivables considered goods- secured -                        -                         
Trade receivables considered goods- unsecured 16,652.68              17,539.80               
Trade receivables have significant increase in credit risk -                        -                         
Trade receivables- credit impaired 49.49                     49.49                      
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (49.49)                   (49.49)                    

Total 16,652.68             17,539.80              

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023  

 Less than 6 
months 

 6-12 
months  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 year  Total 

 (i) Undisputed - considered good      16,652.68           -                       -                   -                             -                 16,652.68 
 (ii) Undisputed- having significant increase in credit risk                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   
 (iii) Undisputed- credit impaired                -             -                       -                   -                             -                               -   
 (iv) Disputed-considered good                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   
 (v) Disputed- having significant increase in credit risk                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   
 (vi) Disputed- credit impaired                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   

 Total   16,652.68            -                        -                    -                              -                 16,652.68 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022  

 Less than 6 
months 

 6-12 
months  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 year  Total 

 (i) Undisputed - considered good      17,520.60           -                    0.05              4.67                      14.48               17,539.80 
 (ii) Undisputed- having significant increase in credit risk                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   
 (iii) Undisputed- credit impaired                -             -                       -                   -                             -                               -   
 (iv) Disputed-considered good                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   
 (v) Disputed- having significant increase in credit risk                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   
 (vi) Disputed- credit impaired                 -              -                        -                    -                              -                               -   

 Total   17,520.60            -                    0.05              4.67                      14.48               17,539.80 
Credit risk management regarding trade receivables has been described in note 51.8
The credit period on sales of goods and services ranges from 7 to 15 days with or without security.
Trade receivables have been given as collateral towards borrowing details relating to which has been described in note 25.
The group is providing 0.5% as allowance for doubtful debts towards expected credit losses considering the business model.

Trade receivables from related parties details has been described in note 52.b.2

Trade receivables does not include any receivable from directors and officers of the Group.

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Movement of doubtful receivables:
Opening loss allowance                      49.48                       41.37 
Allowance provided during the year                         -                             8.55 
Allowance reversed during the year                         -                           (0.44)
Closing loss allowance                      49.48                       49.48 

Note - 17: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Balances with banks in current account 2,056.21                4,637.73                 
Balances with banks in term deposit with maturity less than three months 5,425.93                8,654.37                 
Cheque / drafts on hand 5.10                       413.99                    
Cash on hand 3.43                       2.65                        

Total 7,490.67               13,708.74              

Note -  18: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Balances with Banks
In term deposit accounts

with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months at inception* 35,149.25              10,340.16               
with maturity more than 12 months at inception 46.15                     410.44                    
Margin money deposits* 574.33                   -                         
Deposits held for CSR purpose 251.71                   -                         
Bank Balances towards CSR purpose 3.43                       -                         

Total 36,024.87             10,750.60              
*The above deposits are held as margin money against Letter of Credit / Bank Guarantees issued by banks.

Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 The Group does not generally hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right to offset against any amounts owed by the 
Group to the counterparty. 

 The group exposure to customers is diversified and no single customer other than related parties, contributes more than 10% of the outstanding receivables as at March 
31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 
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Note - 19: Loans (current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Loans
To related parties 25,500.00              24,000.00               
Inter corporate deposit 1,389.97                20,316.47               
Other loan 8,072.92                450.68                

Total 34,962.89             44,767.15              
Sub-classification of loans
Loan receivables considered good-secured -                        -                          
Loan receivables considered good-unsecured 34,962.89              44,767.15               
Loan receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -                        -                          
Loan receivables- credit impaired -                        -                          

Details of Loans and Advances in the nature of loans to related parties:  

Particulars

Name of the Company

 Maximum 
amount 

outstanding 
during the year 

 Amount 
outstanding 

 Maximum amount 
outstanding 

during the year 

 Amount 
outstanding 

Adarsh Advisory Services Private Limited         12,500.00      12,500.00               12,500.00                12,500.00 
Everbest Consultancy Services Private Limited           8,000.00 8,000.00       8,000.00                                 8,000.00 
South West Mining Limited           3,500.00 3,500.00       25,500.00                               3,500.00 
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited                     -   -               2,800.00                                           -   
Ranjitpura Infrastructure Private Limited           1,500.00 1,500.00       -                                                   -   

Note - 20: Finance lease receivables (current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Finance lease receivables 23,295.75                             60,485.65 
Total 23,295.75             60,485.65              

Note - 21: Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable 
from related parties (rental deposit) -                        720.47                    
from Others 1,811.60                2,445.02                 
Security deposits
To related parties (rental deposit) 40.00                     40.00                  
To Others 3,367.12                1,921.09             

Total 5,218.72               5,126.58                

Note - 22: Other current assets

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advance 2,644.89                                 2,643.89 
Indirect tax balances/recoverable/credits 133.28                                       782.31 
Pre-paid expenses, consider good 746.79                                       555.19 
Advances to suppliers and others, consider good 7,232.52                               10,203.44 
Other assets 1,177.49                                        4.27 

Total 11,934.97             14,189.10              

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

There is no amount due from director, other officer of the Group or firms in which any director is a partner or private companies in which any director is a director or 
member at any time during the reporting period.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or
invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Loans to related parties are given for business purpose. Details of loans given to related parties has been disclosed under note 52.
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Note - 23: Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
30,00,00,000 (previous year Nil) Preference shares of 30,000.00          -               
25,00,00,000 (previous year 55,00,00,000) equity shares of 25,000.00          55,000.00          

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital
10,00,000 (previous year 10,00,000) equity shares of 100.00               100.00               

100.00              100.00               
100.00              100.00               

23.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

No. of shares No. of shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,00,000          100.00            10,00,000          100.00               
Add: Issued during the year -                    -                 -                    -                    
Less: Cancel during the year                       -                      -                         -                         -   
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,00,000         100.00            10,00,000         100.00               

23.2 Terms / rights attached to equity shares

23.3 Disclosure of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares 

 No. of shares  % of holding  No. of shares  % of holding 
 Sajjan Jindal Family Trust 10,00,000          100% 10,00,000          100%

23.4 Disclosure of equity shares held by promoters at the end of the year

 No. of 
shares 

 % of total 
Shares 

 % Change 
during the year  No. of shares  % of total 

Shares 
 % Change 

during the year 

 Sajjan Jindal Family Trust   10,00,000 100%                     -            10,00,000 100% Nil

Note - 24: Other equity

 Equity component of compound financial instruments 
Balance at beginning of the year -                    -                    
Add: Movement during the year 3,149.88            -                    
Balance at end of the year 3,149.88           -                     

 Capital reserve 
Capital reserve on account of amalgamation/Business combination
Balance at beginning of the year           95,319.41           95,319.40 
Add: Impact of Business Combinations of entities under common control as per provision of Ind AS 103                       -                      0.01 
Balance at end of the year          95,319.41          95,319.41 

 Retained Earnings 
Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at beginning of the year 2,57,795.28       2,12,913.81        
Add: Profit for the year 20,573.31          47,486.66          
Net gain on  re- measurement of the defined benefit obligation carried to OCI during the year 74.57                59.77                 
Income tax on  re- measurement of the defined benefit obligation carried to OCI during the year (18.77)               (14.96)               
Transfer from/(to) debenture redemption reserve 350.00              (2,650.00)          
Balance at end of the year 2,78,774.39      2,57,795.28      

Other comprehensive income
Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Balance at beginning of year 23.55                 13.55                 
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI (11.12)               28.40                
Income tax on net fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 1.30                  (18.40)               
Balance at end of the year 13.73                 23.55                 

 Other reserve 
Debenture Redemption Reserve *
Balance at beginning of the year 2,650.00            -                    
Transfer (to)/from retained earnings (350.00)             2,650.00            
Balance at end of the year 2,300.00           2,650.00           

3,79,557.41      3,55,788.24      

Nature and purpose of reserves
a) Capital reserve:-During amalgamation, the excess of net assets acquired, over the cost of consideration paid is treated as capital reserve.

d) Items of other comprehensive income

b) Retained earning:- Retained earning are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve and debenture redemption reserve add any transfer from 
debenture redemption reserve. Retained earnings includes re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Group.

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income- The fair value change of equity instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in 
equity instrument through other comprehensive Income and subsequently not reclassified to the statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Debenture redemption reserve:-The Indian Companies Act requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such
debentures are redeemed. Companies are required to maintain 10% as a reserve of outstanding redeemable debentures. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may
not be utilised except to redeem debentures.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Equity Shares

 As at 
March 31, 2023 Particulars

Total

As at March 31, 2022

The Group has only one class of equity shares having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Group,
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Group, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the share holder.

Total

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

As at March 31, 2023

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Particulars

 Particulars 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

23.7 There are no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date

23.5 There are no bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

23.6 There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment

Promoters Name
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Note 25: Borrowings (non-current)

 Non-current   Current 
maturities  Non-current   Current 

maturities 
Secured 
Rupee term loans from banks 25,000.00       10,000.00       35,000.00       27,000.00       

Unsecured debentures issued to others : 
2,300 (previous year: 2,650) rated, listed, zero-coupon, redeemable, non-convertible 
debentures of -                 23,000.00       23,000.00       3,500.00         

1,900 (previous year: Nil) Optionally-convertible debentures of 15,858.91       -                 -                 -                 

Acceptance for capital projects with maturity morethan 1 year (Secured) 5,654.39         -                 -                 -                 

Unsecured term loans (amortised cost):
Rupee term loans from financial institution -                 12,500.00       22,500.00       7,500.00         
From related party 9,500.00         13,900.00       20,000.00       28,400.00       
From others -                 -                 -                 8.00               

56,013.30       59,400.00       1,00,500.00    66,408.00       
Unamortised upfront fees on borrowing (131.37)          (130.84)          (266.79)          (185.22)          

55,881.93       59,269.16       1,00,233.21    66,222.78       
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowing clubbed under other financial liabilities 
(refer note 31) -                 59,269.16       -                 66,222.78       

Total 55,881.93      -                 1,00,233.21   -                 

Secured Loans:
25.1.a. Term Loan (secured)

25.2 Terms of redemption and security details of non-convertible debentures (NCDs):

25.3 Terms of optionally-convertible debentures (OCDs):

Conversion Terms

Voluntary Redemption

Mandatory Redemption

(i) 
(ii) Loan from financial institution carries interest @ 10.30%.

24.5 Terms of repayment loan from body corporate

 As at 
March 31, 2023  Particulars 

The aforesaid term loan are secured by third party pledge of 30,00,000 equity shares of JSW Steel Limited held by JSW Holdings Limited and 26,99,000 equity 
shares of JSW Energy Limited held by JSW Investments Private Limited.

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

On 26 November 2021, the Group has taken rupee term loan of 50,000 lakhs from ICICI bank as part re-financing of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) issued
to J.P. Morgan Securities Asia Private Limited . The term loan carries an interest ranging from 8.35% to 9.05% and was payable on monthly basis with principal
repayments in 20 quarterly instalments. The security for the said loan was first charge over the movable and immovable assets of the Group; second charge on
the current assets of the Group and the said loan shall be further secured by pledge of 30% of the equity share capital of the group. The Group has filed form
CHG-1 on 10 December 2021 towards creation of charge in favour of ICICI Bank by creating first charge over movable assets. Further, the Group has filed form
CHG-1 on 9th June, 2022, for modification of the charge to register the ‘Memorandum of Entry (MOE)- Mortgage by deposit of Title Deeds’ executed in favour of
ICICI Bank Limited.

25.4 Terms of repayment and security details of loan from financial institution and others

25.1.b. During the FY 2022-23, the Group has availed letter of credit facility from ICICI Bank Limited – 
CAPEX Letter of Credit facility with a limit upto 15,000 lakhs with maximum usance period of 1080 days. These facilities have been secured by creating
exclusive charge on specified assets being procured in form of any movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, other movables. The
necessary form CHG-1 has been filed on 18th October, 2022. Interest ranges from 3.6% to 4.6% p.a

In the event the Investor has not exercised its option to convert the OCDs or redeemed the OCDs, prior to the Maturity Date in the manner contemplated above ,
then the Group shall mandatorily redeem all of the subsisting OCDs at face value along with Redemption Premium of 8.00%.

The Investor shall at any time after the expiry of 6th anniversary but before the expiry of 9th anniversary, from the date of allotment of respective tranche of
OCDs, shall by giving atleast 7 days’ notice in writing, redeem the OCDs, either in part or in full, in one or more tranches, at face value along with interest.

The OCDs carry a coupon rate of 0.50% p.a. , which shall accrue at the end of each Financial Year.

The aforesaid NCDs are secured by third party pledge of 66,81,590 equity shares of JSW Steel Limited held by JSW Holdings Limited, 1,64,538 equity shares of
JSW Steel Limited held by Sahyog Holdings Private Limited and 65,50,784 equity shares of JSW Energy Limited held by JSW Investments Private Limited.

The Interest shall be payable, at the time of conversion of the relevant OCDs, to the OCD Holder holding OCDs on the Conversion Date (defined below), as per
the register maintained by the Group.

In case the conversion of the relevant tranche of OCDs into Equity Shares, falls on any date after the expiry of 6th anniversary or in case of Voluntary
Redemption, the Group shall pay the OCD Holder an additional simple interest at the rate of 3.50% p.a. from the date of allotment of the relevant tranche of
OCD till the Conversion Date / Voluntary Redemption.

In case the of conversion of relevant tranche of OCDs into Equity Shares, falls on any date after the expiry of 5th anniversary but before the expiry of 6th
anniversary, from the date of allotment of relevant tranche of OCDs, then no interest shall be payable by the Group.

The conversion price shall be the fair market value of per share of the Group determined an Independent Registered Valuer, less the conversion discount of 20%
on the fair market value.

2,300 Rated, listed, zero coupon, redeemable , non-convertible debentures (NCDs) allotted on 25th March, 2021 are redeemable at a premium of 10.60% IRR
not later than:
(i) 36 months from the date of allotment in respect of Tranche 3 for redemption of NCDs 2300.

Interest is payable to the OCD holder(s) only for the period that is the shorter of (i) the period from the allotment date of the relevant tranche of the OCDs to the
date of conversion into Equity Shares or (ii) the period from the allotment date of the relevant tranche of the OCDs to the date of Voluntary Redemption ("Total
Interest Period").

In case the OCD are required to be mandatorily redeemed in accordance with Mandatory Redemption, then the OCD Holder shall not be eligible for any interest
on the OCDs, for the OCD Tenure and the Group shall pay the OCD Holder a redemption premium at the rate of 8.00% ("Redemption Premium").

The Conversion Date shall occur only post the expiry of 5th Anniversary from the date of allotment of the relevant OCDs to Investors ("OCD Period").

(i)  
(ii)  
(iii)  
(iv)  
(v) Loan from body corporate carries interest @ 9.00% to 10.50%.



JSW Projects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Note - 26: Lease liabilities  

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Non Current Lease Liabilities                     50.82                   425.27 
                    50.82                  425.27 

Note - 27: Other financial liabilities (non-current)  
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Accrued premium on non-convertible debentures                          -                  2,478.20 

                          -                 2,478.20 

Note - 28: Provisions (non-current)
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Provision for gratuity (refer note 49)                     50.18                    51.70 
Provision for leave encashment (refer note 49)                   452.67                   448.46 

                  502.85                  500.16 

Note- 29: Deferred tax liabilities
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (refer note 56)                1,690.20                9,039.09 

1,690.20             9,039.09             

Note - 30: Other non-current liabilities
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
               4,937.73                4,937.73 

Payable for capex                   146.61                    65.32 
               5,084.34               5,003.05 

Note - 31: Borrowings
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
              59,269.16              66,222.78 
              10,278.62                         -   
            69,547.78             66,222.78 

Note - 32: Lease liabilities (current)  
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
                  114.45                    76.36 
                  114.45                    76.36 

Note - 33: Trade payables  
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
               3,191.84                1,850.29 
              12,662.38              12,146.69 
            15,854.22             13,996.99 

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2023  

 Unbilled dues  Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 year  Total 

(i) MSME 0.48                                   3,128.45          20.38         19.07                     23.46               3,191.84 
(ii) Others 4,038.86                            7,899.40         183.32       229.04                   311.76             12,662.38 
(iii) Disputed due-MSME -                                           -                 -                -                            -                            -   
(iv) Disputed due- Others -                                            -                  -                -                             -                            -   

Total              4,039.34             11,027.85        203.70      248.11                   335.22             15,854.22 

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022

 Unbilled dues  Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 year  Total 
(i) MSME -                                 1,771.50          42.63         19.17                     14.45               1,847.75 
(ii) Others 2,750.05                            6,418.43      2,350.45       130.80                   496.96             12,146.69 
(iii) Disputed due-MSME -                                        2.54               -                -                            -                        2.54 
(iv) Disputed due- Others -                                           -                 -                -                            -                            -   

Total              2,750.05               8,192.47     2,393.08      149.97                   511.41             13,996.98 

Note - 34: Other financial liabilities (current)  
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
                  571.71                1,723.78 

Premium Payable on NCDs                5,188.84                   387.49 
Payable towards capital expenditure                3,653.35                2,552.14 
Other payable for expenses                1,538.02                   600.84 

            10,951.92               5,264.25 

Note - 35: Provisions (current)  
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Provision for gratuity (refer note 49)                       1.40                      6.17 
Provision for leave encashment (refer note 49)                     59.92                    56.40 

                    61.32                    62.57 

Note - 36: Other current liabilities  
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Advance from customer                3,312.86                2,126.69 
Statutory liabilities                9,934.79              10,078.21 
Other payables*                     39.17                   297.43 

            13,286.82             12,502.33 
*Other Payable includes payable for employee benefits and other goods

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Total

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 0 days to 180 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-
agreed credit terms.

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Current Lease Liabilities
Total

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Trade payables to related parties details are furnished in note 52.

Advance against BOOT agreement 

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 57)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Particulars

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 25)
Working Capital loans (including Acceptances)

Working Capital (including non-fund based limits) and Derivative limits upto 15,000 lakhs and 4,000 lakhs, respectively. These facilities have been secured by creating first ranking
pari-passu charge on Current Assets, Accounts Assets and Receivables. The necessary form CHG-1 has been filed on 18th October, 2022. Letter of credit carries interest rate ranges
from 5.5% to 5.9% p.a.

The Group has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was obtained.

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Total

Particulars
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Note - 37: Revenue from operation
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 
a) Services provided on contract basis

Conversion charges* 33,071.15                     35,214.85                  
Power Sales 6,796.50                       6,227.59                    
Sale of products 3,60,971.33                  3,76,267.50               

4,00,838.98                4,17,709.94             
b) Other operating income 

Rental income: Finance lease rental income 4,938.96                       8,421.38                    
Other operating revenue 4,073.38                       2,645.93                    

9,012.34                      11,067.31                 
4,09,851.32                 4,28,777.25              

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Revenue from contracts with customers-sale of products 3,60,392.81                  3,76,267.50               
Other operating revenue 4,073.38                       2,645.93                    
Total revenue from operations 3,64,466.18                 3,78,913.43              

Revenue within India 3,64,466.19                  3,78,913.43               
Revenue from outside India -                               -                            
Total revenue from operations 3,64,466.19                 3,78,913.43              

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point of time 3,64,466.19                  3,78,913.43               
Total revenue from operations 3,64,466.19                 3,78,913.43              

Contract balances
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Trade receivables (refer note 16)                      16,652.68                   17,539.80 
Contract Liabilities
Advances received from customers 3,312.86                                           2,126.69 

Refund liabilities:  
 As at 

March 31, 2023 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
Arising from volume rebates (included in other financial liabilities-note 34) 124.15                                                   71.38 

Total (a)

Particulars

Total (b)
Total (a+b)

*Conversion charges as per Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Policies (IGAAP) is 75,218.93 Lakhs which has been
reduced by 42,147.78 Lakhs on account of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 4 adjustment
and shown separately under other operating income as rental income: Finance lease rental income of 4,938.96 Lakhs
resulting in net decrease of revenue from operations by 
Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Particulars

Particulars

 The credit period on sales of goods ranges from 1 to 30 days with or without security 
As at March 31, 2023, an amount of 49.49 lakhs (Previous year: 49.49 lakhs) was recognised as provision for allowance

for doubtful debts on trade receivables. 
Contract liabilities include short term trade advances received for sale of goods. The outstanding balances of these accounts

increased due to receipt of advances for sale of products in the next financial year.  

Out of the total contract liabilities outstanding as on March 31, 2023 3,312.86 lakhs (Previous year: 2,126.69 lakhs) will
be recognized on execution of contract by March 31, 2024. 

Amount of revenue recognised from amounts included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year is 2,126.69
lakhs (March 31, 2022: 

The Group does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognised in the statement
of profit and loss account. 

Particulars

The Group has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue in addition to that provided 
under segment disclosure (refer note 50):
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Note - 38: Other income

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Bank deposits 1,621.61                       3,249.16                    
Other financial assets 3,982.77                       2,053.91                    

5,604.38                      5,303.07                   
b) Dividend income and profit on sale of mutual fund

Dividend from equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI 3.70                             0.07                          
3.70                              0.07                           

c) Other non operating income
Fair value from investment in preference shares measured at FVTPL 5,564.14                       5,053.72                    
Profit on investment made in mutual fund measured at FVTPL 113.48                          66.13                         
Gain on Lease Termination 62.89                            
Foreign exchange gain -                               4.15                          
Others Miscellaneous income 1,197.07                       496.38                       

6,937.58                      5,620.38                   
12,545.66                    10,923.52                 

Note - 39: Cost of materials and services consumed
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 17,103.80                     17,439.84                  
Add: Purchases 3,00,187.11                  2,66,209.44               

3,17,290.91                  2,83,649.28               
Less: Transferred to capital work- in-progress 1,663.23                       179.25                       
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 18,631.90                     17,103.80                  
Cost of material consumed 2,96,995.78                  2,66,366.23               
Power and fuel 1,501.43                       1,005.62                    
Conversion charges 10,830.17                     10,690.64                  

3,09,327.38                 2,78,062.49              
Cost of materials consumed disclosed is on the basis of derived figures.
Note-40: Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Inventories at the end of the year
    Finished goods (including scrap) 5,733.65                       14,284.40                  
    Work-in-progress 180.48                          -                            
Inventories at the beginning of the year
    Finished goods (including scrap) 14,236.88                     11,263.08                  
    Work-in-progress 47.51                            -                            

8,370.26                     (3,021.32)                 

Note - 41: Employee benefits expense
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 
Salaries and wages 5,485.83                      5,180.82                    
Contribution to provident and other funds 643.58                         632.57                       
Staff welfare expenses 608.61                         485.88                       

6,738.02                      6,299.27                   

Note - 42: Finance costs
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 
a) Interest costs :-

11,601.33                                       19,400.81 
3,105.01                                          3,185.08 

Interest on lease 47.33                           36.11                         
14,753.67                    22,622.00                 

b) Other borrowing cost
742.05                         822.18                       

Others finance charges 437.40                         1,630.92                    
1,179.45                      2,453.10                   

15,933.12                    25,075.10                 

Particulars

Premium on non convertible debentures

Pledge fees

Total (a+b)

Interest on borrowing and term loans

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total (a+b+c)

Particulars

Particulars

Total

 a) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not 
designated as FVTPL 
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Note - 43: Depreciation and amortisation expense

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  (refer note 5) 13,270.67                     11,767.23                  
Amortisation of right-of-use asset (refer note 7) 108.71                         101.56                       
Amortisation of Intangible assets (refer note 8) 57.21                           30.45                         

13,436.59                    11,899.24                 

Note - 44: Other expenses
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 
Rent, rates and taxes 1,349.15                      743.96                       
Repairs and maintenance 26,243.53                     22,757.43                  
Insurance 897.00                         747.68                       
Legal and professional fees 743.77                         733.94                       
Travelling expenses 50.05                           51.02                         
Foreign exchange loss 38.68                           61.23                        
Remuneration to auditors (refer note 58) 29.70                           31.12                         
Share Issue Expenses -                              3.20                          
CSR expenditure (refer note 59) 1,901.28                      1,283.97                    
Donation 28.18                           33.97                         
Loss on sale of fixed assets/investments (net) 150.96                         38.69                         
Guest house expenses 180.93                         278.15                       
Freight and demurrage charges 1,986.25                      4,867.19                    
Loading  and unloading charges 138.51                         332.68                       
Miscellaneous expenses 2,982.16                      1,847.89                    

36,720.15                    33,812.12                 

Note - 45: Current tax 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 
In respect of the current year 9,871.78                      9,121.13                    
In respect of the prior years 18.01                           (981.02)                     

9,889.79                      8,140.11                   

Note - 46: Deferred tax 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 

Recognised through profit and loss (refer note 56) (3,661.85)                     10,962.19                  
(3,661.85)                    10,962.19                

Note - 47: Other comprehensive income
 For the year ended

March 31, 2023 
 For the year ended

March 31, 2022 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

   Equity instruments through other compressive income (11.12)                          28.40                        
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1.30                             (18.40)                       

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
   Re- Measurement of the defined benefit plans 112.79                         102.87                      

(ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss (28.39)                          (25.80)                       
74.58                           87.07                       Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Total

Particulars

Particulars
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48.1

48.2

48.3

48.4

48.5

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

                   12,870.15                     9,485.17 
ii) Service tax                     1,318.33                     1,371.94 
iii) Excise duty                        706.38                        706.38 
v) Transport cess                     3,294.68                     3,294.68 
vi) Electricity tax                               -                       3,069.02 
vii) Renewable Power Obligation                     5,140.27                     3,652.77 
viii) MSME Creditors                        425.61                        425.61 
ix) Others                        276.09                        402.04 

B. Forest development tax/fee:

48.6

48.7 Commitments

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

                   44,248.66                   29,020.15 

Other commitments:

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Export promotion capital goods scheme 24,301.43                  12,706.98                 

49 Employee benefits plans
49.1 Defined contribution plans

49.2 Defined benefit plans:

Asset Liability Matching Risk

Interest risk

Mortality risk

Demographic risk

Market risk

Investment risk

Regulatory risk

Salary risk

The plans in India typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: Asset liability matching risk, investment risk, interest risk, mortality risk, demographic risk, market 

The Group has given counter guarantees to banks towards guarantees issued by them on behalf of the company: 

The Group makes Provident Fund and Pension Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Group recognised 367.31 lakhs (Previous ended 352.81 Lakhs) for Provident Fund
contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

Under the Gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service until the retirement age of 58, 60
and 62, without any payment ceiling. The vesting period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years. Under the Compensated absences plan, leave
encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Group due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation. At the rate of daily salary, as per
current accumulation of leave days.

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go
basis from own funds.

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision.

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not
have any longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's
liability.

The Group is also involved in other lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, which arise in the ordinary course of business, however, there are no such matters 
pending that the Group expects to be material in relation to its business.

The President has given his assent to the Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code") in September 2020. On November 13, 2020 the Ministry of Labour and Employment released
draft rules for the Code. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact once the subject rules are notified
and will give appropriate impact to its financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective.

In 2008, the State of Karnataka levied Forest Development Tax (FDT) treating iron ore as a forest produce. Writ Petitions challenging the levy of FDT before Karnataka High
Court by various stakeholders (including BMM Ispat Limited) were filed to which the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka has granted partial relief by a judgement dated 3
December, 2015. The High Court vide its judgment has directed refund of the entire amount of FDT collected by State Government on sale of iron ores by private lease
operators and NMDC. The State Government has filed an appeal before the Supreme Court of India. The Hon’ble Court has not granted stay on the operation of the judgment
but only stayed refund of FDT. The matter is yet to be heard by the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. The company has discharged said levy and treated the levy as cost of
procurement and included in purchase price.
The State of Karnataka on 27 July, 2016, has amended Section 98-A of the Forest Act retrospectively and substituted the levy as Forest Development Fee (FDF) instead of
FDT. In response to the writ petition filed by the company, the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka has vide its order dated 4 October 2017, held that the amendment is ultra-
vires the Constitution of India and directed the State Government to refund the FDF collected. The State Government has filed an appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of
India and the same is currently pending. Based on merits of the case and supported by a legal opinion, the company has not recognised provision for FDF of 34,002.69 lakhs
as at 31 March 2023 (including paid under protest and disclosed as receivable  and treated it as a contingent liability.

Particulars

The above commitment also includes 

The Group has imported capital goods under the export promotion capital goods scheme to utilise the benefit of a zero or concessional customs duty rate. These benefits are 
subject to future exports within the stipulated year. Such export obligations at year end aggregate to:

48. Other disclosures
The Group has entered into lease agreement with JSW Steel Limited, for 39.81 acres (Previous year 39.81 acres) of land situated at Kurekupaa Village. As per the terms of
lease deed, the Group has paid refundable security deposit of 5,00,000 per acre (Total amount 1,99,05,000). An annual lease rental of 100 per acre of land is payable in
advance on the first day of April each year.
The Group is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain trade payable, other payable, trade receivable, other receivable and loan and advances. The
Management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements due to the same.

In the opinion of the Management, all the assets other than Fixed Assets and Non-Current Investments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business, at least
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Provision for depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of what is required.

Contingent liabilities 

The group's other leasing arrangements are in the nature of operating leases. These are cancellable operating leases and the agreements are normally renewed on expiry. The 
aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as rent under note 44.

a) Disputed claims/levies (excluding interest and penalties if any), in respect of 
Particulars

i)  Income tax matters, pending decisions on various appeals made by the group

Particulars

a) Capital commitment

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

The Group has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed 
to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions.

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended 
from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulation requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. increase in the 
maximum limit on gratuity of 

The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

The duration of the liability is longer compared to the duration of the assets, exposing the Group to market risk 
for volatities/fall in interest rate.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at March 31, 2023 by Independent Qualify
Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit
method.
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49.2.i

Gratuity (funded)
a. Liability recognized in the balance sheet

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Present value of obligation
Present Value of obligation as at the beginning 1,243.51                    1,213.84                   
Current service cost 127.43                       128.20                      
Interest cost 86.36                        77.02                        
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (87.31)                       (102.71)                     
Benefits paid (78.90)                       (72.86)                      
Present value of obligation as at the end 1,291.09                   1,243.51                  

Change in the fair value of plan assets

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning 1,235.92                    1,115.77                   
Investment income 85.85                        70.80                        
Contributions 118.10                       121.13                      
Benefits paid (78.90)                       (72.86)                      
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense 5.19                          1.08                          
Fair value of plan assets as at the end 1,366.16                   1,235.92                  
Reconciliation of present value of obligation and the fair value of the plan assets
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,291.09                    1,243.51                   
Closing fair value of plan assets 1,366.16                    1,235.92                   
Net liability recognized in the balance sheet 75.07                        (7.59)                        

b. Expenses recognised in the profit and loss account

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Current and past service cost 127.43                       128.20                       
Interest cost (net) 0.52                           6.22                          
Expenses recognised in the income statement 127.94                       134.43                      

c. Other comprehensive income

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Actuarial (gains) / losses (87.31)                       (102.71)                     
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense (5.19)                         (1.08)                        
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (92.51)                      (103.79)                   

d. Principal actuarial assumptions:

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Discount factor 7.40% 6.95%
Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 8.00% 8.00%

Mortality Rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

e. Experience adjustments:
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Defined benefit obligation 1,291.09           1,243.51                    1,213.84             1,132.00                    809.29                      
Plan assets 1,366.16           1,235.92                    1,115.77             808.24                       741.83                      
Surplus/(deficit) 75.07               (7.58)                         (98.07)               (323.75)                    (67.46)                      
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities-loss/(gain) (87.31)               (102.71)                      (77.00)                182.54                       194.37                      
Experience adjustments on plan assets-loss/(gain) (5.19)                 (1.08)                         (8.06)                  5.27                          (7.32)                        

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Defined benefit obligation (base) 1,291.09                    1,243.51                    

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate (- / + 1%) 1,397.52                    1,197.46             1,353.48                    1,147.40                   
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 8.20% -7.30% 8.80% -7.70%
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 1,199.84                    1,392.48             1,149.75                    1,347.34                   
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -7.10% 7.90% -7.50% 8.40%
Attrition rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 1,312.74                    1,275.97             1,281.52                    1,217.85                   
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 1.70% -1.20% 3.10% -2.10%
Mortality rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 1,291.17                    1,290.99             1,243.68                    1,243.33                   
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Category of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

Fund managed by LIC 100% 100%

 As at 

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

 As at Particulars

j. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses 
below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other 
assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

h. Expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the 
obligations after considering several applicable factors such as the composition of plan assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc.

Particulars

Particulars

The Group offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

Particulars

Particulars

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would 
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the 
end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet.

Particulars

g. In assessing the Group’s post retirement liabilities, the Group monitors mortality assumptions and uses up-to date mortality tables, the base being the Indian assured lives 
mortality (2012-14) ultimate.

f. The Group expects to contribute 

i. The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and 
demand in the employment market.
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Asset liability matching strategies

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) is 8 years

 As at 
March 31, 2023 

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

1 year 127.16                       103.88
2 to 5 years 520.46                       476.51
6 to 10 years 619.10                       567.33
More than 10 years 1,328.46                    1343.28

49.2.ii

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

Components of employer expense
Current service cost 4.87                          4.56                          
Interest cost 5.04                          4.11                          
Expected return on plan assets -                            -                           
Actuarial losses/(gains) (20.74)                       0.92                          
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss                        (10.83)                            9.59 

Actual contribution and benefit payments for year 
Actual benefit payments (7.05)                         -                           
Actual contributions (10.83)                       9.59                          

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 
Present value of defined benefit obligation 51.58                        69.47                        
Fair value of plan assets -                            -                           
Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] -                            -                           
Unrecognised past service costs -                            -                           
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (51.58)                      (69.47)                      

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

 Gratuity  Gratuity 

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year 
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 69.47                        59.88                        
Current service cost 4.87                          4.56                          
Interest cost 5.04                          4.11                          
Actuarial (gains) / losses (20.74)                       0.92                          
Liability transferred out/divestment -                            -                           
Benefits paid (7.05)                         -                           
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 51.58                        69.47                       

Change in fair value of assets during the year 
Plan assets at beginning of the year -                            -                           
Expected return on plan assets -                            -                           
Actuarial gain / (loss) -                            -                           
Benefits paid -                            -                           
Plan assets at the end of the year -                            -                           
Actual return on plan assets -                            -                           

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.49% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets NA NA
Salary escalation 6.00% 6.00%
Employee turnover 2% 2%
Mortality tables  Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality 
2012-14(Urban) 

 Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality 

2012-14(Urban) 
Actuarial Valuation Method
Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate next year  NA  NA 

Experience adjustments 
Gratuity 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19
Present value of DBO 51.58                69.47                         59.88                  55.05                         114.39                       
Fair value of plan assets -                    -                            -                     -                            -                            
[Surplus / (Deficit)] 20.74                (0.92)                         3.41                    5.00                           8.18                          
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities                       -                                  -                          -                                 -                                -   
Experience adjustments on plan assets                       -                                  -                          -                                 -                                -   

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(5.04)                         5.87                    (5.41)                         6.25                          

Future salary growth (1% movement) 5.90                           (5.15)                  6.27                          (5.52)                        
Attrition rate (1% movement) 0.71                           (0.80)                  0.59                          (0.65)                        

a) Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Group due to death, retirement, superannuation or
resignation. Employee are entitled to encash leave while serving in the Group at the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of leave days.

b) Long Service Award: The Group has a policy to recognise the long service rendered by employees and celebrate their long association with the Group. This scheme is called
– Long Association of Motivation, Harmony & Excitement(LAMHE). The award is paid at milestone service completion years of 10, 15, 20 and 25 years.

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis)

ii. Other Long-term benefits

The Group has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for 
a period of one year. The insurance Group, as part of policy rules makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of the funds under 
the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. 
Thus, the Group is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which could result in increase in liability without corresponding 
increase in the assets).

Particulars

a. Gratuity (unfunded )
The following table sets out the unfunded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount recognised in the financial statements: 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet.

 Projected Unit Credit Method 

Sensitivity Analysis: 
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses
below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

Particulars For the year endedMarch 31, 2023 For the year endedMarch 31, 2022

Discount rate (1% movement)

The company also has leave policy for certain employees to compulsorily encash unavailed leave on 31st December every year at the current basic salary.

Particulars
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49.3

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

                       512.58                        504.86 
                       132.45                        127.90 

7.40% to 7.49% 6.95% to 7.25%
6% to 8% 6% to 8%

50 Segment information

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2022 

JSW Steel Limited 45,385.13                   89,848.68                  
Sugna Metals Limited 43,202.18                   -                            

Particulars

As per Ind AS 108, the Group is primarily engaged in the business of jobwork for CDQ ,DRI and generation of power for captive use, being intermediate products used for steel
production.
The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Group has chosen to review the profitability of CDQ/DRI and Power business collectively treating it as profit from CDQ/DRI
business. Hence, the Group has identified one primary business segment i.e., CDQ/DRI. There is only one geographical segment i.e. India.

Compensated Absences:

Particulars

Present value of unfunded obligation (
Expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss (
Discount rate (p.a)
Salary escalation rate (p.a)

Customer contributing more than 10% of Revenue















JSW Projects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

52. Related Party Transactions
52.a. Names of the related parties and description of relationship
Sr. No. Nature of relationship Name of Related Parties

A Person having control
Sajjan Jindal Family Trust (SJFT)
Mr. Sajjan Jindal, Trustee of SJFT
Mrs. Sangita Jindal, Trustee of SJFT

B Enterprise over which KMP and relative of such KMP 
exercise significant influence. Ranjitpura Infrastructure Private Limited

JSW Steel Limited
JSW Techno Projects Management Limited
Realcom Reality Private Limited
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited
JSW Paints Private Limited 
JSW Holdings Limited
Sahyog Holdings Private Limited 
Indusglobe  Multiventures Private Limited
JSW Energy Limited
Epsilon Carbon  Private Limited
Vinamra Properties Private Limited  
Amba River Coke Limited 
JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited
JSW Dharamatar Port Private Limited
JTPM Metal Traders Private Limited    
Descon Limited      
JSW Investment Private Limited       
JSW Cement Limited
Mangalore Coal Terminal Private Limited
JSW Infrastructure Limited
JSW Minerals Trading Pvt Limited
Everbest Consultancy Services Private Limited 
Vividh Finvest Private Limited                                       
JSW Ispat Special Products Limited
JSW Shipping & Logistics Private Limited
Neotrex Steel Private Limited             
JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited
JSW Reality & Infrastructure Private Limited                                                        
Bhushan Power & Steel Limited
GSI Lucchini S.P.A
JSW International Tradecorp Pte Limited
Ennore Coal Terminal Private Limited
South West Port Limited
South West Mining Limited
Adarsh Advisory Services Private Limited
Tranquil Homes and Holdings Pvt Limited
Nalwa Chrome Private Limited
JSW Foundation

D Key Management Personnel (KMP)
1 Executive Chairman Mr. Dinesh Kumar Singhi 
2 Executive Director & CFO Mr. V.V.V Raju
3 Chief Financial Officer Mr. Bhushan Prasad
4 Whole Time Director, CEO & Chairman Mr. Vimal Singh
5 Whole Time Director Mr. Rajendra Moondra

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Singhi
Mr. Vineet Agrawal
Mr. Nagendra Kumar Paladugu
Mr. Pawan Kumar Kedia (w.e.f May 4, 2021)
Mrs. Rakhi Jain

Mr. Ashok Jain (independent director) (upto September 1, 2022)

Mr. Krishna Deshika
Mr. Badri Narain Singh (w.e.f. September 1, 2022)
Ms. Swetha S
Ms. Shilpa Satra (Company Secretary)

E. Post-employment benefits entities 1. BMM Ispat Limited Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme

Other Related PartiesC

Company Secretary7

Independent Directors6

Non-Executive Director6
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53. Earnings per equity share:

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

 Per Share  Per Share 
Basic / Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations                       2,057.33                       4,748.67 
Total basic/diluted earnings per share in (                      2,057.33                      4,748.67 

Basic and Diluted earnings per share:
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Group (                     20,573.31                     47,486.66 
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing 
operations (                    20,573.31                    47,486.66 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic/diluted earnings
per share (No.)

                    10,00,000                     10,00,000 

Earnings per share from continuing operations - basic and diluted (                       2,057.33                       4,748.67 

54. Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee:
Leasing arrangements:
Followings are the amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss:  

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Depreciation charged on Right to use assets                          108.71                         101.56 
Interest accrued on lease liability                            47.33                           36.10 
Gain on lease termination                          (62.89)                                -   

Total                            93.15                         137.66 

Future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:-

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Within one year                                 -                           123.69 
After one year but not more than five years                                 -                           506.98 
More than five years                                 -                                  -   

                                -                           630.67 
Less: Amount representing finance charges                                 -                           129.03 

Total                                  -                           501.64 

54.2. Financial Lease arrangement
The Group as Lessor (Finance Lease)  

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Received against Finance Lease Receivable                     23,295.75                     55,557.30 
Interest Income                                 -                         4,928.35 

Total                    23,295.75                    60,485.65 

Future minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellable Finance leases are as follows:-

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Within one year                     23,295.75                     60,485.65 
After one year but not more than five years                                 -                                  -   
More than five years                                 -                                  -   

                    23,295.75                     60,485.65 
Less: Amount representing finance charges                                 -                         4,928.35 

Total                    23,295.75                    55,557.30 

Particulars

During the year company has recognised 
Lakhs (previous year 

year 

The company had total cash outflow for lease of 
are no non cash additions to right of use asset and lease liability. There are no future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet 
commenced





JSW Projects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
57. Disclosures pertaining to micro, small and medium enterprises:

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Principal amount due outstanding as at end of year 3,191.84            1,850.29            
Interest due on above and unpaid as at end of year -                    -                    
Interest paid to the supplier -                    -                    
Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year -                    -                    
Interest due and payable for the period of delay -                    -                    
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year -                    -                    
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding year -                    -                    

58. Remuneration to the auditors: 
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022
                 29.14                   26.98 
                   0.18                     3.64 
                   0.38                     0.50 
                 29.70                  31.12 

59. Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

             1,901.28              1,290.97 
             1,098.85              1,004.77 
                      -                       7.20 
               802.43                 279.20 
               172.48                        -   

               952.41                 964.62 

Amount earmarked for on-going projects:

With 
company

in separate 
CSR Unspent 

A/c
Total With 

company
 in separate CSR 

Unspent A/c Total

Opening Balance         279.20                   -               279.20                  -   -                    -                    
Amount required to spent at the end of the year         802.43                  -               802.43           279.20 -                    279.20               
Transfer to separate Unspent CSR A/c        (279.20)            279.20                      -                    -   -                    -                    
Income earned on Unspent CSR amount                -               10.43                10.43                  -   -                    -                    
Amount spent during the year                -            (117.15)           (117.15)                  -   -                    -                    
Closing Balance         802.43           172.48             974.91          279.20                        -                  279.20 

Opening Provision Current year 
provision

 Closing 
provision 

                                                                                                     279.20                802.43 974.91               

60. C.I.F. value and expenditure in foreign currency
(i) C.I.F. value of imports:

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

             1,006.40                   37.96 
               678.83                 243.75 
            1,685.23                281.71 

61. Business Combination

Consequent to the aforesaid acquisition, JSW MVPL is a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. November 16, 2022

Net Assets 
acquired

Consideration 
paid Goodwill

            34.82                  36.00                     1.18 

Particulars
Intangible assets under development -                     
Bank Balance 35.07                  
Other Assets -                     
Total Assets (A) 35.07                 
P&L (1.17)                  
Financial liability 0.25                   
Other liability -                    
Total Liabilities (B) 0.25                  
Total Identifiable net assets acquired at fair value (C ) (A-B) 34.82                  
Purchase consideration (D) 36.00                  
Loss on bargain purchase on acquisition (E )= (C-D) (1.18)                 

Disclosure pertaining to micro, small and medium enterprises is based on the information available with the Group regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the "Micro,
small and medium enterprises development act, 2006". 

Amount overdue as on March 31, 2023 to micro, small and medium enterprises is on account of principal amount together with interest.

Particulars

Particulars

Statutory audit fees
Other services
Out of pocket expenses

Total

The Group has incurred an amount of 1,098.85 lakhs (previous year: 1,004.77 lakhs) towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) as per Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and is included in other expenses.

Particulars

(vi) Reason for shortfall

(viii) Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust (JSW Foundation) controlled by the company in relation to CSR 
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard
(ix) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision 
during the year shall be shown separately

(vii) Nature of CSR activities

Particulars

(v) Total of previous years shortfall provided
 Refer 'note a' below 

Health & Nutrition, Improving
Education; Water, Environment &
Sanitation; Rural Development
projects, Skill Enhancement &
livelihood, Promotion of rural sports
and Art & Culture. 

 Refer 'note b' below 

Particulars

Total

Capital goods
Stores and spares

(i) Amount required to be spent by the group during the year

(iii) Excess Spent in FY 20-21
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred

(iv) Shortfall at the end of the year

As at 
March 31, 2023

As at 
March 31, 2022

Note: a) The unspent amount on ongoing projects as at 31 March 2023 aggregating to 
account within the timeline stipulated as per the Companies Act, 2013.

Note: b) Details of movement in provisions in FY 2022-23:

Spent during the year Income earned on Unspent 
CSR amount

117.15                                                                      10.43 

Calculation of goodwill (loss on bargain purchase) on date of acquisition

On November 16, 2022, the Company acquired 100.00% shareholding in JSW Multiventures Private Limited (‘JSW MVPL’) by way of acquisition of equity shares from Everbest
Consultancy Services Private Limited.

Accordingly, the Company has accounted for the acquisition of equity shares of the JSW MVPL under the pooling of interest method retrospectively for the all years presented as
Business Combinations of entities under common control. The impact of the acquisition on these financial statements is as under:

Particulars

JSW Multiventures Private Limited

There is no impact on financial information in respect of prior periods due to acquisition of equity shares under pooling of interest method since the date of incorporation of JSW
MVPL is February 18, 2022 and no significant transactions made till the date of acquisition.
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62. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III
A. Financial ratio disclosure

The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Sr. 
No. Particulars Numerator Denominator As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022 Variance Variance 
(%)

Reasons 
for 

Variance
(i) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.62                    2.15                     (0.53)         (24.49%) (a)

(ii) Debt - Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.20                    0.28                     (0.08)         (28.23%) (b)

(iii ) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for 
Debt Service Debt Service 1.76                    1.76                     0.00           0.05%

(iv) Return on equity ratio Net Profit after Taxes Average Shareholder’s 
Equity 4.27% 12.40%

(8.13%) (65.58%)
(c)

(v) Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 8.49                    7.20                     1.29           17.92%

(vi) Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from 
operations

Average Trade 
Receivables 15.23                  13.63                   1.60           11.72%

(vii) Trade payables Turnover ratio Purchases Average Trade 
Payables 17.61                  21.13                   (3.52)         (16.64%)

(viii) Net Capital Turnover ratio Net Sales Average Working 
Capital 4.53                    4.78                     (0.25)         (5.23%)

(ix) Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after tax Revenue from 
operations 6.26% 15.97% (9.71%) (60.82%) (c)

(x) Return on Capital Employed Earning Before Interest 
and Taxes

Net Worth+ 
Borrowing+ Deferred 
Tax 6.43% 14.77%

(8.34%) (56.44%)
(c)

(xi) Return on Investments Profit generated on sale 
of investment Cost of investment 5.70% 3.62% 2.08% 57.46% (d)

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

The Group companies does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(x) Loans and Advances without specific terms of repayment:
Loans and Advances without specific terms of repayment:
The Group has not given any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies 
Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are: (a) repayable on demand; or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(xi) Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets:
The Group companies have used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was obtained. Periodical returns or statements of 
current assets filed by the respective group companies with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC):

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
(viii) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company

The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour 
of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at 
the balance sheet date.

The Group has not revalued its Property, plant and equipments( including ROU Assets) and intangible assets. Thus the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under 
rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 is not applicable in the given circumstances.

(iv) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

(vi) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been 
recorded in the books of account of Group companies.

(vii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(ix) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The Group companies have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
(ii) Wilful defaulter

(iii) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Group companies has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of 
Layers) Rules, 2017.

B. Relation with struck off Companies
(i) Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
C. Other information:

The Group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.
(i) Details of benami property held

Return on investment ratio is high due to increasing in return on current investment.

Note

Debt equity ratio for FY 2022-23 is less due to re-payment of long term borrowings.

During the FY 2022-23, the group has imported coal by establishing LC towards suppliers by utilizing working capital limits of 
of 

During the FY 2022-23, due to Russia and Ukraine war, the prices of basic raw materials such as Coal (different variants), Scrap & Pig iron have gone up abnormally 
and the increased cost could not be passed on to customers, hence the margins are very low as compared to previous FY 2021-22.
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